
 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENDA OF COUNCIL MEETING  

OCTOBER 17, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

This is a proposed agenda which is subject to change by Mayor and Council without further notice. 
 
ROLL CALL……..FLAG SALUTE……..MOMENT OF SILENCE. 
 

MINUTES: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 3, 2023  
 
COMMUNICATIONS:   

Receive & File: 
CLEAN OCEAN ACTION, RE: Fall Beach Sweep, October 21 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK, RE:  Halloween Hours, October 31, 5 to 7 p.m.  
STATE OF NEW JERSEY DEP, RE: CAFRA Application, North Wildwood Bdwk Improvements 
ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC, RE:  Sustainable Community Grants 
 
Approve & File: 
SPECIAL EVENT, RE: VFW Veterans Day Service, November 11  
SPECIAL EVENT, RE: VFW Pearl Harbor Day Service, December 7  
 

APPOINTMENTS: 
Recreation Dept. 
North Wildwood Volunteer Fire Co. 
 
REPORTS: 
Various Departments 
 
REPORT (for Receive, Approve and File w/ State): 
CY2023 Best Practices Inventory 

 
ORDINANCES: 
Ord. 1913 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 276 Conditional Duplexes in R-2 Zone 
Ord. 1916 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 276 Apartments in R-1.5 Zone 
Ord. 1917 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 292 Mercantile Licenses 
Ord. 1918 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 3 Administrative Code – Fixed Asset Inventory 
Ord. 1919 (2nd Reading) – Capital Improvement Ordinance 
Ord. 1920 (1st Reading) – Amending Chapter 71 Personnel Policies 
Ord. 1921 (1st Reading) – Amending Chapter 276 Landscaping Regulations 
 

RESOLUTIONS: 
1. Refund for Overpayment of Real Estate Taxes 
2. Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Cedar Oak Development LLC) 
3. Authorizing Adoption of Revisions to Personnel Polices Manual 
4. Authorizing Submission of Application for CY2024 UEZ Funding 
5. Confirming Appointment of Fire Official 
6. Authorizing Emergency Beach Repairs 
 
 
VOUCHER LIST/FINANCE: Authorizing payment of all approved vouchers    
    
COUNCIL: 
PUBLIC: 
ADJOURNMENT:  

 
Next Regular Meeting:  Wednesday, November 8, 2023 @ 5:00 p.m. (Election Day – November 
7) 



















CITY OF NORTH 
WILDWOOD 

***************************** 

HALLOWEEN 2023 

TRICK-OR-TREAT 
HOURS 

*********************** 

TUESDAY, 

OCTOBER 31 

5:00 PM TO 7:00 PM 







1

W. Scott Jett

From: Davis, Marie F:(ACE) <marie.davis@atlanticcityelectric.com> on behalf of Town, 
Veronica A:(ACE) <veronica.town@atlanticcityelectric.com>

Sent: Friday, October 6, 2023 11:39 AM
Subject: EXTERNALAtlantic City Electric and Sustainable Jersey Award 10 South Jersey 

Communities $50,000 to Support Open Space and Resiliency Projects

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

 
To help support the development of environmental, open space and resiliency projects across South Jersey 
communities, Atlantic City Electric and Sustainable Jersey announced the 10 recipients of the 2023 
Sustainable Communities Grants Program.  The one-time grants of up to $5,000 each, totaling $50,000, 
support nature preservation, safer parks, and enhanced resiliency for local communities. This funding is made 
available through Atlantic City Electric’s Sustainable Communities Grant program.  
 
Atlantic City Electric launched the Sustainable Communities Grant program in 2020 with Sustainable Jersey 
administering the grants to local communities. To date, the program has provided $275,000 in grants 
supporting environmental, open space and resiliency efforts in the communities where Atlantic City Electric 
serves.  
 
 
This year, Atlantic City Electric and Sustainable Jersey have awarded grants to the following municipalities: 
 
 Atlantic City ($5,000) – The grant will be used to support the development of the open space and 

recreation element of the City’s master plan. 
 Egg Harbor City ($5,000) – The grant will be used to continue upgrading City Lake Park by cleaning up 

the north shore side of the park which is home to the historic gravesite of Sibbel Shaler and by enhancing 
interpretive signage along the well-known trail. 

 Somers Point City ($5,000) – The grant will be used to update the landscaping and playground at local 
senior citizen center, including a temperature moderation project. 

 Commercial Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to purchase an osprey nature sign at the local 
park.  

 Maurice River Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to construct and install two large shade 
structures for the Delmont and Port Elizabeth Recreation areas.  

 Deptford Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to restore and rehabilitate the Fasola Park steps. 
 East Greenwich Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to redevelop Mickleton Park by removing 

invasive plants and develop a native plant nursey.  
 Upper Pittsgrove Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to enhance signage along Elephant 

Swamp Trail to improve safety and cleanliness of the trail and guide residents to connecting trails and 
parks.  

 Medford Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to develop a weather station and begin the second 
phase of a lightening detection system in the township to prepare residents for severe weather, save lives 
and reduce storm damage.  

 Long Beach Township ($5,000) – The grant will be used to build a resilience and restoration 
demonstration display. 

 
The Sustainable Communities Grant program provides $40,000 in environmental stewardship grants, up to 
$5,000 each, for projects focusing on open space preservation, improvements to parks and recreation 
resources and environmental conservation. The program also provides $10,000 in resiliency grants, up to 



2

$5,000 each, to support innovative approaches to providing a safe and reliable resource for a community 
during a time of emergency, such as severe weather.  
 
Municipalities in the Atlantic City Electric service area can apply for a Sustainable Communities grant each 
year. A committee with representatives from Atlantic City Electric and Sustainable Jersey reviews each 
application and selects the projects to receive funding.   
 
The Sustainable Communities Grant program is part of Atlantic City Electric’s Climate Commitment, a multi-
faceted, action-oriented effort to help the state of New Jersey achieve its clean energy and climate goals. As 
part of the commitment, the company is taking actionable measures to reduce its greenhouse gas footprint, 
deliver innovative solutions that will empower customers and communities to achieve greater greenhouse gas 
reduction across South Jersey. The effort supports the broader Path to Clean goal of Atlantic City Electric’s 
parent company, Exelon, to reduce its operations-driven emissions 50 percent by 2030 and achieve net-zero 
operations by 2050.  
 
More information on the Sustainable Communities Grant Program is available at 
atlanticcityelectric.com/SustainableCommunities. 
 
Ronnie Town | External Affairs Manager 
 
Atlantic City Electric | Governmental & External Affairs 
420 Route 9 North | Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 
o: 267-533-0825 | c: 609-849-4579 
atlanticcityelectric.com 
 

 
 
This Email message and any attachment may contain information that is proprietary, legally privileged, confidential and/or subject to copyright belonging 
to Exelon Corporation or its affiliates (“Exelon”).  This Email is intended solely for the use of the person(s) to which it is addressed. If you are not an 
intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivery of this Email to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that any 
dissemination, distribution or copying of this Email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please immediately notify the sender 
and permanently delete this Email and any copies. Exelon policies expressly prohibit employees from making defamatory or offensive statements and 
infringing any copyright or any other legal right by Email communication. Exelon will not accept any liability in respect of such communications. 
 

This Email message and any attachment may contain information that is proprietary, legally privileged, 
confidential and/or subject to copyright belonging to Exelon Corporation or its affiliates ("Exelon"). This Email 
is intended solely for the use of the person(s) to which it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, or the 
employee or agent responsible for delivery of this Email to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified 
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this Email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
message in error, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this Email and any copies. 
Exelon policies expressly prohibit employees from making defamatory or offensive statements and infringing 
any copyright or any other legal right by Email communication. Exelon will not accept any liability in respect 
of such communications. -EXCIP  





































































































10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 1/18

Best Practices Inventory Online Platform
2023 Survey

North Wildwood City
Printable Current Answers

001

002

003

Unscored Survey Budget

What portion of ARP LFRF dollars will your municipality obligate toward eligible uses by December 31, 2024? [0.00] 100%

Core Competencies Budget

Unless the Director sets forth a later date pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5.1, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5 requires that calendar
year municipalities approve their introduced budgets no later than February 10 (or August 10 for state fiscal year
municipalities) and N.J.S.A. 40A:4-10 requires that calendar year municipalities adopt their budgets no later than
March 20 (or September 20 for state fiscal year municipalities). Timely budget adoption helps a municipality avoid
having to issue estimated tax bills or tax anticipation notes (TANs). Did your municipality introduce and adopt its
current year budget no later than the dates provided by law or as extended by the Director in Local Finance
Notice 2022-22? This question may only be answered N/A if your municipality's budget is subject to adoption by
the Local Finance Board under State Supervision or if the Division instructed the municipality to delay budget
adoption.

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Budget

N.J.S.A. 40A:5-12 requires the chief financial officer of each municipality to file the Annual Financial Statement
(AFS) with the Division no later than February 10 (August 10 for SFY municipalities). Local Finance Notice 2022-22
announced the extension of this deadline to March 3rd or the next regularly scheduled meeting of the governing
body after said date. The statute specifies a $5 per day penalty payable by the CMFO for failing to file the AFS
within 10 days of after the time fixed for filing. Did your municipality file its AFS by the above deadline?

[1.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 2/18

004

005

006

007

008

Core Competencies Budget

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:2-40, the chief financial officer each municipality shall, before the end of the first month
of the fiscal year, file its Annual Debt Statement with the Division of Local Government Services. Did your
municipality file its Annual Debt Statement for the preceding fiscal year with the Division no later than January 31
(July 31 for SFY municipalities)?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Budget

Has your municipality electronically submitted to the Division the User-Friendly Budget section of its adopted
budget?

[1.00] Yes

Best Practices Budget

Has your municipality created an accumulated absence liability trust fund pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:30-15.5? Only
answer N/A if your municipality 1) does not offer (for any employee hired after a certain date) payouts upon
retirement for accumulated sick leave, and 2) no current employee has a grandfathered right to sick leave
payouts upon retirement.

[0.00] No

Best Practices Budget

N.J.S.A. 40A:4-62.1 allows municipalities to establish a storm recovery reserve for purposes such as, but not
limited to, snow, ice, and debris removal. Unexpended balances budgeted annually for storm recovery purposes
may be lapsed into the reserve. Has your municipality established a storm recovery reserve to ensure the
consistent availability of funds for this purpose?

[0.00] No

Core Competencies Capital Projects

Sections 7 and 8 of P.L. 2021, c. 184 amended N.J.S.A. 40A:4-43 and 4-44 to require any municipality having its
own water system to reflect in its capital budget and capital program the water infrastructure improvements
listed on the annual Water Quality Accountability Act (WQAA) capital improvement report submitted to the
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). The Local Finance Board recently adopted amendments to
N.J.A.C. 5:30-4.3 incorporating this statutory change into the municipal budget process. If your municipality has
its own water system, does the capital budget and program reflect the capital projects listed in the annual WQAA
report submitted to DEP that fall within the time period of the municipality's capital budget and capital program?

[1.00] N/A



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 3/18

009

010

011

012

013

Core Competencies Capital Projects

Has your municipality adopted a capital program as defined by N.J.A.C. 5:30-4.2, meaning a moving, multi-year
plan and schedule for capital projects (including prospective financing sources) and, when pertinent, first year
operating costs and savings? Only answer N/A if your municipality does not have a capital budget and is not
required to adopt a capital budget pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:30-4.3.

[1.00] Yes

Best Practices Capital Projects

Does your municipality have a schedule for road repair and improvement projects based on a priority scoring
system?

[0.50] Yes

Unscored Survey Capital Projects

Please select the categories of projects that are listed in your municipality's most recent capital budget or capital
program. More than one selection is permissible. If selecting Vehicles, please include the type of vehicle(s) in the
Comment field. Only answer N/A if your municipality is not required to adopt a capital budget pursuant to
N.J.A.C. 5:30-4.3.

Comment: Ambulance, Fire
Truck, Multiple Public Works
Vehicles

Unscored Survey Capital Projects

As of April 20, 2021, a municipality may enter into project labor agreements for any public works project for
construction, reconstruction, demolition or renovation, so long as 1) the project requires payment of prevailing
wage under State law; and 2) the total project cost, exclusive of land acquisition costs, will equal or exceed $5
million. See Local Finance Notice 2021-20 for further details. Does your municipality require a project labor
agreement for all or a portion of its eligible public works projects as permitted by P.L. 2021, c. 69?

[0.00] Yes

Core Competencies Cybersecurity

A cybersecurity incident response plan is a set of instructions to help detect, respond to, and recover from
network security incidents. Plans such as those adopted by a governing body or from a municipality's JIF address
areas such as cybercrime, data loss, and service outages. Does your municipality have a cybersecurity incident
response plan?

[1.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 4/18

014

015

016

017

018

019

020

Core Competencies Cybersecurity

Are all municipal employees receiving ongoing cybersecurity training in malware detection, password
construction, identifying security incidents and social engineering attacks?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Cybersecurity

Does your municipality perform off-network daily incremental backups with weekly full backups of all data? [1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Cybersecurity

Is Multi Factor Authentication (MFA) required for remote access to your municipality's network? If yes, please
state under Comments where your municipality deploys MFA (e.g. banking, privileged users in-network, off-
network back ups).

[0.00] No

Core Competencies Cybersecurity

Does your municipality require a password policy for all network users requiring alphanumeric complexity, length
requirements, and either 1) at least annual updating; or 2) a password meeting advanced standards such as those
from the National Institute of Standards & Technology (NIST)?

[1.00] Yes

Best Practices Cybersecurity

Has your municipality enrolled for membership in the New Jersey Cybersecurity & Communications Integration
Cell (NJCCIC)? An NJCCIC membership provides access to the latest cyber alerts, bulletins, training notifications
and other important updates.

[0.50] Yes

Best Practices Environment

Have one or more public electric vehicle charging stations been installed on municipal property? [0.00] No

Best Practices Environment

When purchasing new vehicles, does your municipality have a formal policy to purchase hybrid or altenative fuel
vehicles whenever such vehicles are suited to the intended use? Only answer N/A if your municipality does not
own any vehicles.

[0.00] No



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 5/18

021

022

023

024

Core Competencies Ethics

The Local Government Ethics Law, designed to ensure transparency in government, requires local government
officers to file Financial Disclosure Statements (FDSs) annually.  Compliance by local elected officials is required by
N.J.S.A. 40A:9-22.6.  Did all governing body members timely file their annual Financial Disclosure Statements for
2023 such that they were not issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) by the Local Finance Board? A "No" answer is
permissible if the governing body members' NOV were rescinded by the Board. Only answer N/A if your
municipality has an ordinance on the books establishing a municipal ethics board.

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Ethics

If your municipality has a municipal ethics board, did the municipal ethics board enforce the Financial Disclosure
Statement (FDS) statute by issuing violations to local government officers (LGOs) who were on the 2023 roster
but did not file the FDS by April 30, 2023? Only answer N/A if your municipality does not have an ordinance on
the books establishing a municipal ethics board.

[1.00] Yes

Unscored Survey Ethics

N.J.S.A. 40A:9-22.21 of the Local Government Ethics Law requires a municipality that has established its own
municipal ethics board to enact a municipal code of ethics. The municipal ethics code must be either identical to
or more restrictive than the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:9-22.5. If your municipality has an ordinance on the books
establishing a municipal ethics board, does your municipality have a municipal code of ethics that is identical to,
or more or less restrictive than, the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:9-22.5?

[0.00] Identical to NJSA
40A:9-22.5

Unscored Survey Ethics

If your municipality has an ethics board with at least a quorum for conducting business, how many matters were
adjudicated by the municipal ethics board in 2022 (excluding FDS non-filing matters)? A municipal ethics board
shall consist of six members, at least two of whom shall be public members. No more than three members shall
be of the same political party.

[0.00] None



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 6/18

025

026

027

Core Competencies Financial Administration

At its July 2023 meeting, the Local Finance Board adopted an amendment to N.J.A.C. 5:30-8.2 that converted the
previously suggested surety bond schedule for a CMFO to a mandatory minimum schedule. This change will
come into effect on January 1, 2024. See
https://www.nj.gov/dca/divisions/dlgs/resources/rules_docs/5_30/njac_5308.pdf for further details and to view
the exposure index. Through a blanket bond or an individual bond, does your municipality provide a fidelity bond
with faithful performance coverage for the CMFO that meets at least the minimum schedule set forth in N.J.A.C.
5:30-8.2?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Financial Administration

At its July 2023 meeting, the Local Finance Board adopted updates to N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.7 requiring municipalities to
maintain a general ledger for not only the current fund, but also for all other funds. The updated N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.7
codifies previously issued guidance in Local Finance Notice CFO 2003-14 on maintaining general ledger
accounting systems, except that all local units, including authorities and fire districts, are now required to post the
totals for all funds to the general ledger on at least a monthly basis. See
https://www.nj.gov/dca/divishttps://www.nj.gov/dca/divisions/dlgs/resources/rules_docs/5_30/njac_5305.pdf for
further details. Does your municipality maintain a general ledger for its current fund and all other funds in
accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.7?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Financial Administration

N.J.S.A. 40A:5-7 requires a synopsis of all audits, together with the auditor's recommendations, to be prepared
and published by the municipal clerk at least once in the municipality's official newspaper or, if there is none, in a
newspaper published in the local unit or, if there is no newspaper published in the local unit, in a newspaper
having a general circulation in the municipality. If the municipal clerk fails to have publication of the synopsis and
recommendations made within 30 days of receipt of the annual audit, the clerk shall be subject to a fine of $10.00
payable to the local unit for each day after the expiration of the 30 days that such publication fails to appear. At
its July 2023 meeting, the Local Finance Board adopted updates to N.J.A.C. 5:30-6.4 that codifies the minimum
content of the synopsis of audit along with the process for publishing the synopsis and corrective action plan.
Does your municipality publish the synopsis of audit as required pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:5-7?

[1.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 7/18

028

029

030

Core Competencies Financial Administration

Effective for CY2022/SFY2023 and CY2023/SFY2024 municipal budgets, the annual maximum contribution a
municipality can appropriate for use by its volunteer fire companies or board of fire commissioners pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:14-34 is $161,526.00. In any municipality where there are more than three volunteer fire companies
or fire districts, the governing body may appropriate an additional $50,000 annually for each additional volunteer
company or fire district. At least 50% of the municipality’s annual appropriation must be used by a volunteer fire
company or board of fire commissioners for the purchase of fire equipment, materials and supplies. N.J.S.A.
40A:14-34 requires the volunteer fire company or fire district to provide the municipal governing body, on an
annual basis, an accounting of the use of all municipal funds. See Local Finance Notice 2022-19 for further details.
Is your municipality obtaining from each volunteer fire company or fire district an accounting of the use of all
municipal funds?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Financial Administration

N.J.S.A. 40:5-2 limits to $125,000 the maximum annual dollar amount that a municipality may contribute to a duly
incorporated first aid and emergency or volunteer ambulance or rescue squad association, except that if any such
associations experience extraordinary need, a municipality may contribute an additional amount of not more than
$70,000 annually. Whenever the total annual contribution exceeds $70,000, the municipal CFO shall receive an
audit performed by a CPA or RMA of the association's current year financial records which shall certify that such
records are being maintained in accordance with sound accounting principles. If your municipality contributed in
excess of $70,000 toward a first aid, ambulance, rescue or EMS squad in its current budget, was an audit
performed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:5-2?

[1.00] N/A

Core Competencies Financial Administration

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:5-14(d), a local unit’s investment policies shall be based on a cash flow analysis prepared
by the CFO, with those policies being commensurate with the nature and size of the funds held by the local unit.
Has your municipality conducted a cash flow analysis of its deposited and invested funds, and, based on that
analysis, does your municipality’s cash management plan set policies for your municipality’s investments that
consider preservation of capital, liquidity, current and historical investment returns, diversification, maturity
requirements, costs and fees associated with the investment and, when appropriate, policies of investment
instrument administrators?

[0.00] No



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 8/18

031

032

033a

033b

033c

Best Practices Financial Administration

N.J.A.C. 5:30-8.3(a)(3) establishes a schedule of minimum dollar amounts for tax collector surety bonding.
However, to provide a higher level of security for public funds, municipalities are encouraged to adopt the more
stringent schedule for tax collector surety bonding specified in N.J.A.C. 5:30-8.3(a)(4). Has your municipality
adopted the more stringent surety bonding schedule for tax collectors set forth in N.J.A.C. 5:30-8.3(a)(4) or
higher?

[0.50] Yes

Best Practices Financial Administration

N.J.A.C. 5:30-8.4 (a) establishes a schedule of minimum dollar amounts for municipal court surety bonding,
specifically for municipal judges and municipal court administrators. However, subsection (b) of 5:30-8.4
encourages municipalities to adopt a more stringent schedule for municipal court surety bonding that is specified
in the subsection. Has your municipality adopted the more stringent surety bonding schedule for municipal court
judges and court administrators set forth in N.J.A.C. 5:30-8.4(b) or higher?

[0.50] Yes

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

How is residential solid waste collected? [0.00] Private hauler
contracted by
municipality

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

If your municipality provides residential solid waste pickup, or contracts with a private hauler or another local unit
to do so, how many times per week is pickup scheduled for?

[0.00] Twice per week in
peak season/once-per
week for remainder of
year

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

If residential solid waste is collected through a private hauler contracted by the municipality, how many bids did
your municipality receive in response to its most recent advertisement for residential solid waste collection or a
joint solid waste/recycling collection bid?

[0.00] Two bids



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 9/18

033d

033e

034a

034b

034c

034d

034e

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

Is residential solid waste picked up utilizing a truck with an automated single arm? Answer N/A if residents
contract directly with a private hauler or bring garbage to a central location run by a local government.

[0.00] No

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

If your municipality’s residential solid waste pickup is done through a private hauler contracted directly by
residents, how many hauler services are currently servicing residents?

[0.00] N/A

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

How is residential recycling collected? [0.00] Private hauler
contracted by
municipality

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

What type of residential recycling program does your municipality have? Select only one. [0.00] Single-stream

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

Is residential recycling picked up utilizing a truck with an automated single arm? [0.00] No

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

If your municipality provides residential recycling pickup, or contracts with a private hauler or another local unit
to do so, how many times per week is pickup scheduled for?

[0.00] Other (fill-in
under Comments)
Comment: Once per week.
Twice in peak
season(summer)

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

If residential recycling is collected by a private hauler procured separately by your municipality, how many bids
did your municipality receive in response to its most recent advertisement for residential recycling collection?

[0.00] Two bids



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 10/18

034f

035

036

037

038

039a

Unscored Survey Garbage & Recycling

If your municipality’s residential recycling pickup is done through a private hauler contracted directly by
residents, how many hauler services are currently servicing residents?

[0.00] N/A

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

If additional funding were to be made available for the Lead Grant Assistance Program (LGAP), would your
municipality be interested in applying ? Answer N/A if your municipality will have no local lead inspection
activities that could be funded by the grant program or does not have any dwellings eligible for inspection.

[0.00] Yes

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

What portion of LGAP dollars has your municipality obligated to date? [0.00] N/A

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

Does your municipality have a permanent local agency that is currently conducting inspections for lead-based
paint hazards in rental dwellings and enforcing the provisions of P.L. 2021, c. 182? If your answer is "Other" fill-in
the name of the municipal agency under Comments. If your answer is "Shared Service", please fill-in the name of
the agency and the local unit providing the service under Comments. Further information concerning the
requirements of this recently enacted law are available at
https://www.nj.gov/dca/divisions/codes/resources/leadpaint.html.

[0.00] No local agency

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

If your municipality does not have a permanent local agency or a shared service currently conducting inspections
for lead-based paint hazards in rental dwellings to enforce the provisions of P.L. 2021, c. 182, has your
municipality retained a lead evaluation contractor to provide paid lead inspection services?

[0.00] No

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

Pursuant to P.L. 2021, c. 182, has your municipality identified rental dwellings that have experienced tenant
turnover since July 22, 2022?

[0.00] No



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 11/18

039b

040a

040b

040c

041a

041b

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

If your municipality has identified rental dwellings that have experienced tenant turnover since July 22, 2022, have
all of those units been inspected prior to re-occupancy?

[0.00] No

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

How many visual lead-based paint inspections did your municipality conduct (directly, through shared services, or
through a certified lead evaluation contractor) since 2022? Please only include numbers (no text or explanation)
under Comments to facilitate tabulation.

Comment: 0

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

How many dust wipe-sampling lead-based paint inspections did your municipality conduct (directly, through
shared services, or through a certified lead evaluation contractor) since 2022? Please only include numbers (no
text or explanation) under Comments to facilitate tabulation.

Comment: 0

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

How many post-remediation lead-based paint inspections has your municipality conducted (directly, through
shared services, or through a certified lead evaluation contractor) since 2022? Please only include numbers (no
text or explanation) under Comments to facilitate tabulation.

Comment: 0

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

How many lead safe certifications have been issued by your municipality since 2022? Please only include numbers
(no text or explanation) under Comments to facilitate tabulation.

Comment: 0

Unscored Survey Lead Remediation

What is the number of lead safe certifications issued by the municipality in the past fiscal year, as used by the
municipality? Please only include numbers (no text or explanation) under Comments to facilitate tabulation.

Comment: 0



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 12/18

042

043

044

Core Competencies Personnel

For any municipal officers and employees NOT required by contract or municipal policy to make health benefit
contributions following the Chapter 78 health benefit contribution grid (excluding Rx and dental), is your
municipality requiring those employees to contribute at least 1.5% of base salary towards health benefits
pursuant to P.L. 2010, c. 2? See Local Finance Notices 2010-12 and 2011-20R for further details. Answer N/A if all
of your municipality's officers and employees are required by contract or municipal policy to contribute at least
the amount required by P.L. 2011, c. 78 for health benefits.

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Personnel

Payments for waivers filed before May 21, 2010 and maintained continuously since, cannot exceed fifty percent
(50%) of the amount saved by the local unit as a result of the employee’s waiver of coverage. For waivers filed on
or after May 21, 2010, which is the effective date of P.L. 2010, c. 2, payments cannot exceed the lesser of twenty-
five percent (25%) of the amount saved by the local unit as a result of the waiver, or $5,000. When calculating an
employee’s waiver payment, the local unit must deduct the employee’s healthcare contribution obligation from
the total premium cost. Local units have sole discretion as to whether or not to offer employees payments for
waiver of health benefits, and may offer waiver payments below the statutory maximum. Health benefit waiver
payments are statutorily excluded from collective bargaining. See Local Finance Notices 2010-12 and 2016-10 for
further discussion on health benefit waiver payments. Are your municipality’s healthcare waiver payments at or
below the statutory maximum? “N/A” is only applicable where the municipality does not make payments in lieu
of health benefits.

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Personnel

The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) is a federal law requiring that overtime pay must be paid for all hours over 40
hours in a work week except for those employees classified as exempt and thus not entitled to overtime.
Management employees such as elected officials, managers/administrators, municipal clerks, CFOs, public works
superintendents, police chiefs and other department heads are typically classified as having exempt status and
thus not entitled to overtime pay. Other municipal employees may also be classified as exempt under the FLSA
(please consult labor counsel for detailed guidance). Exempt status also precludes overtime pay for time worked
during emergencies, attendance at night meetings and participation in training sessions. Compensated leave time
in lieu of cash payments is considered a form of overtime pay unless such leave is utilized in the same pay period.
Does your municipality refrain from paying overtime to employees classified as exempt under the FLSA?

[1.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 13/18

045

046

047

048

049

Core Competencies Personnel

Has your municipality reviewed and updated its employee personnel manual/handbook within the past three
years or upon the conclusion of each of your municipality's collective negotiated agreements (CNAs)? If yes,
please provide in the Comments section the date which the personnel manual was officially updated using the
MM/DD/YYYY format. If not yes, please type "Did Not Answer Yes" into the comment box.

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Personnel

At its July 2023 meeting, the Local Finance Board updated N.J.A.C. 5:30-16.2 to require a municipality's
purchasing agent, certified public works manager, and business administrator/municipal manager to register for
GovConnect by November 1, 2023. If your municipality has one or more of the above-referenced titles, have the
individuals in those titles registered for GovConnect?

[1.00] Yes

Best Practices Personnel

Has your municipality established by ordinance an anti-nepotism policy that, at minimum, only authorizes the
hiring the family members/relatives of municipal officials and employees if the individuals involved would not
work in a direct supervisory relationship, or in job positions in which a conflict of interest could arise. The term
“family member/relatives” should be defined to include but not necessarily be limited to spouses, children,
siblings, parents, in-laws, and step-relatives.

[0.50] Yes

Unscored Survey Personnel

Does your municipality currently have an unlicensed individual serving as an acting municipal clerk, tempoary
chief municipal finance officer, temporary purchasing agent, and/or a temporary chief public works manager?
Select as many as are applicable or None of the Above.

Unscored Survey Personnel

Does your municipality currently retain a chief financial officer through a professional services contract? [0.00] No



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 14/18

050

051

052

053

Core Competencies Procurement

The purchase of insurance coverage and consultant services is a limited exception to public bidding by virtue of
being deemed an Extraordinary Unspecifiable Service (EUS) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5(a)(ii) and 40A:11-5(1)
(m). Page 3 of Local Finance Notice AU-2022-2 for further details. The standard EUS certification declaration (do
not submit the form to DLGS) is available at
https://www.nj.gov/dca/divisions/dlgs/programs/lpcl_docs/eus_letter.pdf. If your municipality has procured
insurance under the EUS exception to public bidding, has your municipality followed the procedural requirements
of an EUS in doing so?

[1.00] N/A

Best Practices Procurement

If your municipality contracts with an insurance broker for health insurance, and said contract exceeds the Local
Public Contracts Law (LPCL) bid threshold, is your municipality's health insurance broker being procured through
a competitive contracting or sealed bid process conducted pursuant to the Local Public Contracts Law? Only
answer N/A if your municipality does not contract with an insurance broker for health insurance or, if it does, the
contract does not exceed your municipality's LPCL bid threshold.

[0.50] N/A

Best Practices Procurement

Insurance broker fees dependent on the amount of health insurance premiums or fees paid by the municipality
are vulnerable to abuse as brokers could face conflicting incentives in seeking lower-cost health insurance
alternatives. If your municipality contracts with an insurance broker for health insurance, is the structure for
broker payments set at a flat-fee rather than on a commission basis to mitigate the risk of a broker
recommending more expensive health insurance coverage to earn higher fees? Only answer N/A if your
municipality does not contract with an insurance broker for health insurance.

[0.50] Yes

Core Competencies Shared Services

N.J.S.A. 40A:65-4(b) requires a copy of each shared services agreement to be filed with the Division of Local
Government Services. Has your municipality filed with the Division the most current copy of each shared services
agreement under which the municipality provides one or more services to another local unit as defined by
N.J.S.A. 40A:65-3 of the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act? Only answer N/A if your municipality
does not provide a shared service to another local unit.

[1.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 15/18

054a

054b

055a

055b

056a

Unscored Survey Shared Services

If your municipality currently provides a chief financial officer, tax collector, tax assessor, municipal clerk, qualified
purchasing agent, certified public works manager, municipal treasurer, and/or a public works superintendant to
another municipality pursuant to a shared services agreement, please select one or more of the options provided
and list under Comments each municipality (and the county in which that municipality is located) along with the
position being provided to that municipality. If your municipality currently provides none of these positions
pursuant to a shared services agreement, select None of the Above and insert N/A into Comments.

Comment: N/A

Unscored Survey Shared Services

If the answer to Question 54a is yes, did one or more of the identified shared service agreements result in the
dismissal of a tenured official? If yes, please insert under Comments 1) the position or positions where an
agreement resulted in the dismissal of a tenured official; and 2) an estimate of the cost savings anticipated to be
achieved by the participating municipalities at the outset of the agreement. If the answer is No or N/A, please
insert "No" or "N/A" under Comments. See LFN 2018-3R for more information on this provision of the Common
Sense Shared Service Act.

[0.00] N/A
Comment: N/A

Unscored Survey Shared Services

The Local Efficiency Achievement Program (LEAP) provides funding for local government shared services and
consolidation feasibility studies, along with shared services and consolidation start-up costs up to $400,000. Is
your municipality interested in LEAP?

[0.00] No

Unscored Survey Shared Services

What does your municipality see as the most significant barrier, if any, to implementing shared services? [0.00] No barriers

Unscored Survey Special Improvement Districts

Has your municipality designated one or more special improvement districts (SIDs) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:56-71? [0.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 16/18

056b

057

058

059

Unscored Survey Special Improvement Districts

If your municipality has designated one or more special improvement districts (SIDs) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:56-
71, does one or more SID have a business improvement zone established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:56-71.1 et seq.?
Answer N/A if your municipality does not have a SID.

[0.00] No

Core Competencies Transparency

Are your municipality's codified and uncodified ordinances, including all current salary ordinances, available
online?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Transparency

Does your municipality maintain an up-to-date municipal website containing at minimum the following: past
three years adopted budgets; the current year proposed budget (including the full adopted budget for the
current year when approved by the governing body); most recent annual financial statement and audits;
notification(s) for solicitation of bids and RFPs; and meeting dates, minutes and agendas for the governing body,
planning board, board of adjustment and all commissions?

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Transparency

N.J.S.A. 34:13A-8.2 requires public employers, including municipalities, to file with the Public Employment
Relations Commission (PERC) a copy of all contracts negotiated with public employee representatives. This
includes, but is not limited to, collective bargaining agreements, memoranda of understanding, contract
amendments, and "side letter" or "side bar" agreements. Copies of same may be emailed to
contracts@perc.state.nj.us. Has your municipality filed all current contracts with PERC? Only answer N/A if your
municipality does not have any employee labor unions.

[1.00] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 17/18

060

061

062

063

Core Competencies Transparency

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:13A-16.8(d)(2), PERC requires a summary of the cost impact associated with a
municipality’s completed contracts for all bargaining units. Police and fire contracts have one summary form,
while non-police and fire contracts have another form. The summary forms and filing instructions are located at
https://www.state.nj.us/perc/conciliation/contracts/. Has your municipality filed the required PERC summary
forms for all current completed labor agreements? Only answer N/A if your municipality does not have any
employee labor unions.

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Transparency

In accordance with Governor Murphy's Executive Order 267 dated October 8, 2021 and outlined in LFN 2022-08
dated March 2, 2022, municipalities and counties were required to provide DLGS with a copy of all American
Rescue Plan (ARP) LFRF reports filed with U.S. Treasury, including Project and Expenditure Reports, Interim
Reports, and Recovery Plan and Performance Reports?. Did your municipality file with DLGS all reports filed with
Treasury? Only answer N/A if your municipality refused ARP LFRF Funding

[1.00] Yes

Core Competencies Transparency

P.L. 2023, c. 30, known as the "Elections Transparency Act," made various significant changes to New Jersey's pay-
to-play laws. One of these changes is the prohibition on imposing pay-to-play provisions that are more restrictive
than those in State law. The repeal of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-51, the statute that originally authorized local pay-to-play
restrictions or grandfathered existing ones, is effective retroactive to January 1, 2023. See Local Finance Notice
2023-14 for further details. Has your municipality repealed any local pay-to-play ordinances or resolutions
originally authorized or grandfathered by N.J.S.A. 40A:11-51? Answer N/A if your municipality did not have local
pay-to-play restrictions on the books.

[1.00] N/A

Best Practices Transparency

Does your municipality feature a link on its website to the Division of Taxation’s Property Tax Relief Program
webpage at https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/taxation/relief.shtml?

[0.50] Yes



10/5/23, 11:01 AM Printable Current Answers · Custom Portal

https://njdca.dynamics365portals.us/bpi/surveys/question-list/printable-current-answers/?id=a9a30bf6-a75e-ee11-be6e-001dd806513c&printable=true&showyear=2023 18/18

064

065

066

067

Core Competencies Utilities

P.L. 2022, c.107 (N.J.S.A. 48:2-29.57 et seq. or the "Utility Reporting Law") requires the Board of Public Utilities
(BPU) to collect data from both investor-owned utilities and local government-owned utilities regarding service
to residential and commercial customers. The reporting template is available at
https://nj.gov/bpu/agenda/doc/PL107/ReportingRequirementTemplateFinal.xlsx. If your municipality has a water,
sewer, or electric system, has your municipality complied with the reporting requirement in the Utility Reporting
Law?

[0.00] No

Core Competencies Utilities

P.L. 2023, c. 33, signed on April 5, 2023, required that all investor-owned utilities and all local units that directly
bill residential ratepayers for water and/or sewer sign a vendor contract with Department of Community Affairs
(DCA) to participate in the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP). See Local Finance Notice
2023-09 for further details. If your municipality directly bills for water and/or sewer, did your municipality enter
into an agreement with DCA to participate in LIHWAP?

[0.00] No

Core Competencies Utilities

Section 4 of P.L. 2021, c. 317 establishes a Winter Termination Program allowing eligible residential customers to
avoid service shutoff from November 15 through March 15 for non-payment of water, sewer, or electric service
provided by a local unit. See Local Finance Notice 2023-09 for further details. Has your municipality notified its
residential ratepayers about the Winter Termination Program in the manner required under law with respect to
the utility services it provides?

[1.00] N/A

Core Competencies Utilities

P.L. 2021, c. 97 requires municipalities with their own water, sewer, or electric service to provide monthly notice to
residential ratepayers concerning local utility service and bill payment assistance. Please review Local Finance
Notice 2023-09 for more information on the law's requirements. Is your municipality complying with the monthly
notice requirements of P.L. 2021, c. 97? Only answer N/A if your municipality does not have its own water, sewer,
or electric service.

[1.00] Yes



 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1913 
   

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING  
ORDINANCE 1177, AS AMENDED 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 1177, adopted May 19, 1994, has been codified in the Code of 

the City of North Wildwood as Chapter 276, Land Development; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood’s Land Development Ordinance establishes 

specific zoning districts throughout the City which identify and specify specific permitted and 

prohibited uses, area and bulk requirements governing the construction of said uses, and 

requirements governing overall development within said districts; and  

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has established the R-2 (Single-Family 

Residential) zone which is a residential zoning district; and 

 WHEREAS, among other uses, the R-2 zone specifically permits the development of 

detached single-family dwellings on 40ft. x 100ft. lots, single-family semidetached dwellings on 

60ft. x 100ft. lots, and two-family stacked dwellings on 60ft. x 100ft. lots; and 

 WHEREAS, in 2018, in an effort to promote development within the R-2 zone, and in 

connection with the City of North Wildwood’s most recent reexamination of its Master Plan, the 

City of North Wildwood modified Chapter § 276-16 of the City’s Land Development Ordinance 

in order to permit the development of single-family semidetached dwellings and two-family 

stacked dwellings as conditional uses on 50ft. x 100ft. lots; and 

 WHEREAS, in light of recent development trends and the impact that the development 

of single-family semidetached dwellings and two-family stacked dwellings on 50ft. x 100ft. lots 

has had on individual neighborhoods throughout the R-2 zone, the City Council of the City of 

North Wildwood finds the develop of single-family semidetached dwellings and two-family 

stacked dwellings on 50ft. x 100ft. lots within the R-2 zone has negatively impacted the R-2 zone 

plan and further finds that same should be eliminated as permitted conditional uses within the R-

2 zone. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the 

Code of the City of North Wildwood at §276-16(D) allowing for the development of single-

family semidetached dwellings and two-family stacked dwellings as conditional uses on 50ft. x 

100ft. lots is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



 

Section Two.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 

 Section Three.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, 

to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Four.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 

publication as provided by law. 

      
 
      ________________________________ 
      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:   September 5, 2023      
PB Recommendation:   
Advertised:     
Hearing/Final:    
Advertised:     
  



 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1916 
   

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING  
ORDINANCE 1177, AS AMENDED 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 1177, adopted May 19, 1994, has been codified in the Code of 

the City of North Wildwood as Chapter 276, Land Development; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood’s Land Development Ordinance establishes 

specific zoning districts throughout the City which identify specific permitted and prohibited 

uses, area and bulk requirements governing the construction of said uses, and regulations 

governing overall development within said districts and throughout the City of North Wildwood; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has established the R-1.5 (Single-Family 

Residential) zone which is a residential zoning district; and 

 WHEREAS, among other uses, the R-1.5 zone specifically permits the development of 

detached single-family dwellings and also allows for the development of accessory apartments as 

conditional uses in areas located between the City’s R-1 zone and its more intense commercial 

districts in an effort to provide a transition between residential and commercial zones; and 

 WHEREAS, the R-1.5 zone previously permitted the development of two-family 

dwellings as conditional uses; however, two-family dwellings were eliminated as permitted 

conditional uses in July of 2022, in accordance with City of North Wildwood Ordinance 1882, as 

it was determined that two-family dwellings were inconsistent with the zone plan overall purpose 

of the R-1.5 zone; and 

 WHEREAS, in an effort to maintain consistency with the elimination of two-family 

dwellings within the R-1.5 zone, and to ensure that permitted conditional accessory apartments 

located within single-family detached dwellings are not developed in a fashion to circumvent the 

elimination of two-family dwellings within the R-1.5 zone, the City Council of the City of North 

Wildwood finds it to be necessary and appropriate to modify the applicable conditions regulating 

the development of accessory apartments within the R-1.5 zone; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the 

Code of the City of North Wildwood at §276-15.1(C)(1), allowing for the development of 

accessory apartments, as conditional uses, is hereby amended as follows: 

(1) Accessory apartments, as conditional uses, and the requirements for all of those 

residences shall be the same as for single-family residences within this zone. 



 

Accessory apartments can be developed as an optional development scheme and are 

subject to the following: 

(a) Conditional accessory apartments that are not located within a single-family 

detached dwelling unit are prohibited. 

(b) Studio apartments are prohibited. 

(c) Conditional accessory apartments in the R-1.5 Zoning District shall be limited 

to one such accessory apartment per the lesser of one lot or one single-family 

detached dwelling unit. 

(d) Conditional accessory apartments shall be no larger than 25% of the total 

habitable floor area of the structure in which they are located and shall contain 

no less than the minimum net habitable floor area as required by the City's 

Affordable Housing Ordinance, regardless of whether or not the conditional 

accessory apartment is to be created under the City's Affordable Housing 

Ordinance, as applicable. 

(e) Any increase in the number of bedrooms on the lot in question caused by the 

addition of a conditional accessory apartment to an existing single-family 

detached dwelling shall require compliance with the parking requirements of 

the RSIS (N.J.S.A. 5:21-1 et seq.). 

(f) Entrances to conditional accessory apartments shall be limited to the front or 

side elevations of the single-family detached dwelling unit in which they are 

located. If located on a side elevation, such entrance shall be situated within 

the front 1/3 of the structure. 

(g) All conditional accessory apartments shall comply with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) and the accessibility and adaptability requirements of 

N.J.A.C. 5:94-3.14. 

Section Two.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 

 Section Three.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, 

to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Four.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 

publication as provided by law.      

 
      ________________________________ 
      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:   September 5, 2023       
PB Recommendation:   
Advertised:     
Hearing/Final:    
Advertised:     
  



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1917 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 360, AS AMENDED AND CODIFIED IN 
SECTION 292-4 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD, 

PERTAINING TO MERCANTILE LICENSE FEES 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of North Wildwood in the County of 

Cape May, State of New Jersey, as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 360, as amended, and/or the portions of any other 

ordinance, that has been codified in §292-4 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby 

amended in the following manner: 

A. The reference to “Gardeners and/or landscapers $75” shall be deleted. 

B. The reference to “Lawn Maintenance $50” shall be deleted. 

 
Section Two.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable.               

Section Three.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, to the 

extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Four.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication 

as provided by law. 

                 ___________________________ 

                                                                         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

_____________________________ 

W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Introduced:     September 19, 2023 
Advertised:     September 27, 2023 
Public Hearing/Final:   October 17, 2023 
Advertised:    October 25, 2023 
 

 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1918 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING SECTION 3-50 OF THE 
CODE OF THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD, PERTAINING TO THE CITY FIXED 

ASSET INVENTORY 
  
 WHEREAS, the threshold for non-expendable, tangible personal property as defined in 
N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.6, “Accounting for Governmental Fixed Assets,” has been increased to 
$5,000.00 for municipalities, bringing the threshold to a level comparative with the federal 
government; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a local unit may establish a threshold not exceeding $5,000.00 items on the 
municipality’s Fixed Asset Inventory; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer and the Qualified Purchasing Agent have 
determined that a threshold be established for the City of North Wildwood in the amount of 
$5,000.00. 
 

 THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of North Wildwood in 

the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 980, adopted December 17, 1987, as amended, that has 

been codified in §3-50 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby amended and 

supplemented by the addition of a paragraph which shall be codified as §3-50D(2) and which 

shall read as follows: 

(2) The Fixed Asset limit for local governmental assets held by the City of North 
Wildwood is hereby set at $5,000.00. 

 
Section Two.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable.               

Section Three.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, to the 

extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Four.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication 

as provided by law. 

                 ___________________________ 

                                                                         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

_____________________________ 

W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Introduced:     September 19, 2023 
Advertised:     September 27, 2023 
Public Hearing/Final:   October 17, 2023 
Advertised:    October 25, 2023 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1919 

 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING VARIOUS  IMPROVEMENTS 

OF THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF 

CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY, APPROPRIATING $1,000,000 

THEREFOR FROM RESERVE TO PAY DEBT SERVICE FOR 

THE FINANCING THEREOF. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY (not less than two-thirds of 

all members thereof affirmatively concurring) AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The improvement described in Section 2 of this ordinance is hereby 

authorized to be undertaken by the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New 

Jersey (the “City”) as a general improvement.  For the improvement or purpose described in 

Section 2, there is hereby appropriated the sum of $1,000,000 from the City of North Wildwood 

Reserve to Pay Debt Service, said sum being inclusive of all appropriations heretofore made 

therefor. 

Section 2.   The improvements hereby authorized and the purpose of the appropriations is 

as follows: 

 Providing for the improvement of various buildings and public property, and 

Beach Replenishment in the City of North Wildwood including all work and 

materials necessary therefor and incidental thereto for an amount not to exceed 

$1,000,000. 

 Section 3.  The following matters are hereby determined, declared, recited and stated: 

The improvement or purpose described in Section 2 of this bond ordinance is not a current 

expense.  It is an improvement or purpose that the City may lawfully undertake as a general 

improvement, and no part of the cost thereof has been or shall be specially assessed on property 

specially benefitted thereby. 



 
 

 Section 4.  The capital budget of the City is hereby amended to conform with the 

provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith.  The resolution in the 

form promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended capital budget 

and capital program as approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services 

is on file with the Clerk and is available there for public inspection. 

 Section 5.  This bond ordinance shall take effect upon its publication and passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 

            ___________________________ 
                                                                         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Introduced:    September 19, 2023 
Advertised:   September 27, 2023  
Hearing/Final:  October 17, 2023 
Advertised:   October 25, 2023 
 
 



 

 

 
CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  1920 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 71, PERSONNEL POLICIES, OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood, in 
the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 
Section One.  The portion of Ordinance No. 693, adopted September 20, 1977, as 
amended by Ordinance No. 1663, that has been codified in §71-16 of the Code of the 
City of North Wildwood is hereby amended so as to read as follows: 
 
§71-16.  Working hours.  
 
The basic working hours for all employees in administrative departments shall be 
from 8:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m., with one hour off for lunch at a time to be designated 
by the department head. The working hours for other departments shall be 
established by departmental procedures and appertaining collective bargaining 
agreements.  
 
Section Two.  The portion of Ordinance No. 693, adopted September 20, 1977, that 
has been codified in §71-17A of the Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby 
amended so as to read as follows: 
 
§71-17. Holidays. 
 

A. The following days shall be designated as holidays in the City of North 
Wildwood: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, 
Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and any other such holiday 
as may be designated by the Mayor and approved by resolution of Council, 
not to exceed a total of fourteen holidays annually. An official holiday shall 
be the period from 12:00 midnight preceding the holiday to 12:00 midnight 
of the day of the holiday. 

 
Section Three.  The change of basic working hours described in §71-16 for 
employees in administrative departments shall become effective January 1, 2024.  
 
Section Four.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court 
of competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder 
of this Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 
               
Section Five.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this 
Ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are 
repealed. 
               
Section Six.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 
publication as provided by law. 
      

  ________________________________ 
       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:  October 17, 2023        
Advertised:   October 25, 2023     
Hearing/Final: November 8, 2023      
Advertised:  November 15, 2023    



 

 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1921 
   

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING  
ORDINANCE 1177, AS AMENDED 

 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 1177, adopted May 19, 1994, has been codified in the Code of the City of 

North Wildwood as Chapter 276, Land Development; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Board has discussed potential revisions to establish minimum 

landscaping requirements within front yards throughout the City of North Wildwood in an effort to ensure 

that an appropriate amount of landscaping is incorporated on sites in connection with the development of 

residential and commercial structures/uses; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Board has discussed several potential revisions to sections § 276-7, § 

276-33, and § 276-35 associated with definitions and regulations pertaining to landscaping, and has 

determined that the proposed revisions are in the best interest of the City and are consistent with the current 

City of North Wildwood Master Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Wildwood finds it to be necessary and 

appropriate to amend and supplement Chapter 276, Land Development, of the Code of the City of North 

Wildwood in a manner consistent with the revisions proposed by the North Wildwood Planning Board. 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood, in 

the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the Code of the 

City of North Wildwood at §276-7 is hereby supplemented by the addition of two new definitions which 

shall read as follows: 

Hardscaping - Hardscaping is the non-living landscape elements made of including, but no limited to, 
stone, bricks, permeable and/or impermeable pavers, ornamental structures and/or status & fountains, 
concrete, or metal.  Hardscaping consists of structural features made of stone, brick, or concrete, including 
walkways, patios, retaining walls & other landscaping features that aren't organic grasses, plants or flowers.  
These objects are generally sturdy, durable features & require minimal maintenance. 
 
Landscaping – Landscaping shall include seed/ grass sod, trees, shrubs, appropriate edging materials, rocks, 
stone or other hardscape materials in accordance with an overall landscape plan.  Planting of native species 
is highly encouraged.  Hardscaping shall be limited to 50% of any landscaped area located in the frontyard 
as defined & as shown on the landscaping plan.  Landscaping does not include hard paving stones, pervious 
and/or impervious pavers and/or “hardscape areas.”  Landscaping of the utility strip, commonly between 
the curb & sidewalk need not be landscaped.  Landscaping shall not be installed with any type of impervious 
barrier, not allowing stormwater or rainwater from infiltrating into the ground.  Acceptable & recommended 
plantings for landscaping can be found at https://northwildwood.com/departments/public-buildings-parks-
and-grounds-department. 
 
 



 

 
Section Two.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the Code of 

the City of North Wildwood at §276-33 is hereby amended and supplemented to the extent that §276-33 

shall hereafter read as follows: 

§ 276-33. Natural Features. 
 

A. Natural features such as trees, natural terrain & open waters shall be preserved whenever possible in 
designing any development containing such features. 
 

B. The stripping of topsoil & the excavation of clay, sand, gravel, rock or other such material shall be permitted 
& the material thus excavated may be sold only under the following conditions & in conformance with the 
requirements of this Chapter: 

 
(1) As part of the construction of a building or the construction or alteration of a street. 
(2) The surface of the lot shall not be graded to a level below that of adjoining properties. 
(3) Stripped & excavated materials are not required for the final grade & landscaping of the property. 

(4) Stripped & excavated materials are changed or renewed in compliance with the provisions of this Chapter 
& as part of any submitted landscaping plan and/or any condition of subdivision or site plan approval. 

 
C. Landscaping attributes and/or materials as defined in Chapter 276-7.  See also Chapter 276-35 for driveway 

& landscape design criteria for frontyards. 
 
D. Other provisions of the Chapter notwithstanding, in any residential zoning district, the entire lot, except for 

areas covered by buildings or surfaced as parking, recreation or service areas, shall be landscaped in 
accordance with landscaping as defined in Chapter 276-7 & in accordance with an overall landscape plan 
consistent with the natural coastal surroundings.  All landscaping shall be properly maintained throughout 
the life of any residential use on said lot/property.  In the frontyard, as defined, the landscaped area, there 
shall be no more than 50% for concrete/pavers/hardscape for driveways, walkways, ground level patios (ie 
impervious coverage) as decorative hardscape.  The rest of 50% frontyard shall be landscaped.  A minimum 
of 30% shall be reserved for grass, plantings & mulched areas.  There shall be no more than 20% maximum 
for loose stone and/or decorative pavers. 

 
All stone, rocks and/or gravel to be used in front, side and/or rearyard(s) shall be placed over water 
permeable filter fabric, and any use of plastic or other impermeable material as a weed barrier is prohibited 
& same will be attributed to overall imperious coverage.  Landscaping stones, including but not limited to; 
Belgian Block, shall be permitted or other comparable & suitable materials to act as a border to prevent the 
stones from getting on the sidewalk, curb, driveway, driveway apron and/or curb gutter area.  Any 
landscaping stones used in this manner shall not constitute a “tripping hazard” in the City’s street right-of-
way. 
 

Section Three.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the Code of 

the City of North Wildwood at §276-35(6) is hereby amended and supplemented to the extent that §276-

35(6) shall hereafter read as follows: 

(6) At least 50% of the lot frontage of the frontyard, as defined from the property line inwards towards the 
proposed building, shall be contiguous raised curb with landscaping only.  Design of the frontyard shall also 
consider any driveway for access, required parking & any frontyard walking path, exclusive of the 50% 
requirement.  Hardscaping of the complete frontyard area is prohibited.  Landscaping to be provided in 
accordance with Chapter 276-7 & Chapter 276-33.  Landscaping of the utility strip, commonly between the 
curb & sidewalk, need not be landscaped, but must be in accordance with City Typical Section for same.  
The utility strip can be hardscaped with pavers, concrete or oriental stone.  The intent of the raised curb is 
to provide as much on-street parking as possible & to provide an open, landscaped area along the front of 
the property from the sidewalk to the front of the structure.   

 
In all zones other than R-1 & R-2 the Planning Board, at the time of siteplan review, shall have the discretion 
to consider other than 50% contiguous raised curb requirement.  For example, if 50% raised curb would 
produce only one (1) on-street parking space, the Board may consider the contiguous raised curb to be 
reduced to that required for one (1) parking space (22 feet long).  The Board may also consider the raised 
curb along adjacent properties in combination with raised curb on property that would result in the maximum 
number of on-street parking spaces being provided.  In all instances, the development must provide a 
minimum of 25% of lot frontage with contiguous raised curb & 50% of lot frontage with noncontiguous 
raised curb.  
 

 



 

 

Section Four.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this Ordinance, which shall 

remain valid and operable. 

 Section Five.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, to the extent 

of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Six.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

      
         
     ________________________________ 
     Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:       October 17, 2023      
PB Recommendation:   
Advertised:      
Hearing/Final:    
Advertised:     
  
 



 
 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

REFUND FOR OVERPAYMENT OF REAL ESTATE TAXES 
 

 WHEREAS, the Tax Collector reports that the following persons or 
associations of persons have overpaid and/or paid in error real estate taxes as set 
forth on the schedule below. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of 
the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey 
that refunds be given to the following persons or associations of persons in the 
amounts set forth: 
 
PROPERTY    PAYEE     AMOUNT 
 
BLK 104  LT 5      CORELOGIC REFUNDS DEPT   $1,180.26 
2023 QTR 3    PO BOX 9202 

COPPELL, TX 75019  
 

BLK 146  LT 11  QUAL C0208  CORELOGIC REFUNDS DEPT   $1,617.13 
2023 QTR 3    PO BOX 9202 

COPPELL, TX 75019  
 

BLK 159  LT 19     MACKENZIE MCCRACKEN   $1,944.79 
2023 QTR 3 & 4    231 W CHESTNUT AVE 

NORTH WILDWOOD, NJ 08260 
 

BLK 188.02  LOT 13   WELLS FARGO REAL ESTATE TAX SER $435.10 
2023 QTR 3    ATTN: REFUNDS/FINANCIAL SUPPORT 
     P.O. BOX 14506 
     DES MOINES, IA 50306 

 
BLK 188.02  LT 15   ALFRED SUEZ JR    $394.95 
2023 QTR 3    115 W 2ND AVE 

NORTH WILDWOOD, NJ 08260 
 
BLK 258  LT 5  QUAL C0004  CORELOGIC REFUNDS DEPT   $538.39 
2023 QTR 3    PO BOX 9202 

COPPELL, TX 75019  
 

 
 
TOTAL           $6,110.62  
        

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Tax Collector be and he is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to make the necessary corrections in his 
records and to see to the payment of these refunds. 
 
OFFERED BY: _______________________ SECONDED BY: _________________________ 
     -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on 17th day of  October 2023. 
 
Dated:  October 17, 2023 

Signed: _____________________________ 
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

Approved: __________________________    
Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     

Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

    
RESOLUTION #    



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 

 
WHEREAS, The Application submitted by Cedar Oak Development, LLC requests preliminary & final 

siteplan approval & ‘c’ variance relief in order to develop a single-family semi-detached dwelling (duplex) at 
the property located at 431 East 25th Avenue, a/k/a Block 289, Lot 8, in the City’s Oceanside (OS) Zoning 
District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on April 13, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $4,750.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $3,744.20. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
 

OFFERED BY: _______________________        SECONDED BY: _________________________ 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 17th day of October, 
2023. 

 
 
      Dated: ___October 17, 2023_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 
       APPROVED: ____________________________ 
         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

                        Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent                                                      Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent 
Tolomeo                 Koehler 
Rullo                                                                                  Bishop 
Kane                                                                                   Zampirri 
Del Conte 

 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

Cape May County, New Jersey 
RESOLUTION 

 

AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF REVISIONS TO THE PERSONNEL POLICIES 

AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 
 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of North Wildwood to treat employees and prospective 

employees in a manner consistent with all applicable employment laws and regulations including, but not 

limited to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, the Age 

Discrimination in Employment Act, the Equal Pay for Equal Work Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the New 

Jersey Law Against Discrimination, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, 

The Conscientious Employee Protection Act, the Public Employee Occupational Safety and Health Act, the 

New Jersey Civil Service Act, the New Jersey Attorney General’s guidelines with respect to Police Department 

personnel matters, the New Jersey Worker’s Compensation Act, the Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget 

Reconciliation Act (COBRA) and the Open Public Meeting Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood seeks to qualify for the Model 2024-2025 Employment 

Practices Liability (EPL) Risk Management Program of the Municipal Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund 

(MEL), which program benefits the City in numerous ways, including, but not limited to, buy-down deductibles 

and co-insurance caps, and by appointing an Affirmative Action Officer (AAO); and 
 

WHEREAS, Mayor and Council has determined that there is a need for personnel policies and 

procedures to ensure that employees and prospective employees are treated in a manner consistent with these 

laws and regulations, including an Employee Handbook. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood 

that the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual or specific sections contained therein, as attached hereto, are 

hereby adopted, including an Employee Handbook. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these personnel policies and procedures shall apply to all City 

officials, appointees, employees, volunteers and independent contractors. In the event there is a conflict between 

these rules and any collective bargaining agreement, professional services contract or Federal or State law, the 

terms and conditions of that contract or law shall prevail.  In all other cases, these policies and procedures shall 

prevail. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this manual is intended to provide guidelines covering public 

service by City employees and is not a contract. The provisions of this manual may be amended and 

supplemented from time to time without notice and at the sole discretion of the Mayor and Council of the City 

of North Wildwood. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the appointment of Nic Long as the City’s Affirmative Action 

Officer (AAO) is hereby approved. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to the maximum extent permitted by law, employment practices 

for the City shall operate under the legal doctrine known as “employment at will.” 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administrator and all managerial/supervisory personnel 

are responsible for these employment practices.  The Personnel Administrator and the City’s Labor Counsel 

shall assist the City Administrator in the implementation of the policies and procedures in this manual. 
 

OFFERED BY: ___________________                                    SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                                                       COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 

I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of 

the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 17th day of October 2023. 
 

Dated:  October 17, 2023                                 Signed: _____________________________ 

               W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Approved: __________________________    

                 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo     Koehler     

Rullo     Bishop     

Kane     Zampirri     

Del Conte          

             
              #       



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION 
TO THE NEW JERSEY URBAN ENTERPRISE ZONE AUTHORITY FOR 

ENTERPRISE ZONE ASSISTANCE FUNDS FOR ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
URBAN ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING  

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 52:27H.88 creates an Enterprise Zone Assistance Fund to be held by the State 
Treasurer on behalf of qualifying municipalities, of which the City of North Wildwood is recognized, which 
shall be a repository of all monies required to be deposited therein and disbursed in the amounts necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of the UEZ Authority, N.J.S.A. 52:27H 60 et seq.; and 
 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 52:27H-88b. permits a municipality to utilize 10% of the amount annually 
credited to its Enterprise Zone Assistance Fund for administrative expenses incurred in furtherance of the 
mission of the New Jersey Urban Enterprise Zone Authority; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to adequately provide for the proper administration of qualified economic 
development projects in designated enterprise zones within the City of North Wildwood by funding qualified 
assistance fund expenses, Council finds it to be in the best interest of the City of North Wildwood and in 
furtherance of the goals set forth in N.J.S.A. 52:27H-60 et seq. to request and utilize available monies being 
held by the State Treasurer for FY2024 UEZ Administrative Budget in the amount not to exceed $36,656.00. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Council of the City of North  
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby authorize and direct the submission of a 
proposal to the New Jersey Urban Enterprise Zone Authority for use of Enterprise Zone Assistance Funds in the 
amount of $36,656.00 credited in FY2024 being held on behalf of the City of North Wildwood for 
administrative expenses necessary to fulfill the purposes of N.J.S.A. 52:27H-60 et seq. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the persons whose names, titles, and signatures appear below or 
their successors in said titles are authorized to sign any agreement connected with this funding and any other 
documents necessary in connection therewith: 

 
 

          __________________________________  
       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
     
 
          __________________________________  
       W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

OFFERED BY: ___________________                                    SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                                           COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 17th day of October 
2023. 
 

Dated: _____October 17, 2023______     Signed: __________________________________ 
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
Approved: __________________________    

                 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     

Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

             
              #       



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey  

RESOLUTION 

CONFIRMING MAYOR’S APPOINTMENT OF FIRE OFFICIAL 

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Fire Safety Act, N.J.S.A. 52:27D-192, et. seq., at N.J.S.A. 

52:27D-202 authorizes municipalities to adopt an ordinance providing for local enforcement of 

the Fire Safety Act; and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 1196, as amended and as codified in Chapter 240 of the North 

Wildwood Code, provides for local enforcement of the Fire Safety Act; and 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of §240-2 of the North Wildwood Code the North 

Wildwood Bureau of Fire Prevention in the North Wildwood Construction Office is the 

designated local enforcing agency with regard to the Fire Safety Act; and 

WHEREAS, under §240-4 of the North Wildwood Code the North Wildwood Bureau of 

Fire Prevention is under the direct supervision of the North Wildwood Fire Official; and 

WHEREAS, §240-5A of the North Wildwood Code provides that the North Wildwood 

Fire Official shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of City Council in 

accordance with §3-12 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood; and 

WHEREAS, the current term for the position of Fire Official will expire on October 16, 

2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has forwarded to Council for consideration his appointment of 

Daniel Speigel as North Wildwood Fire Official for a three (3) year term commencing October 

17, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Daniel Speigel holds the required certification under the Fire Safety Act and 

the administrative regulations adopted thereunder and Council is satisfied that he is otherwise 

qualified to fill, and to perform all of the duties required of, the position of North Wildwood Fire 

Official. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of City Council of the City 

of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, as follows: 

1) All of the statements of the preamble are repeated and are incorporated herein and are made a 

part hereof by this reference thereto as though the same were set forth at length. 

2) The Mayor’s appointment of Daniel Speigel to the position of North Wildwood Fire Official 

for a three (3) year term commencing October 17, 2023 is confirmed. 

3) The City Clerk shall forward copies of this Resolution, certified as true, to the New Jersey 

Department of Community Affairs and to the Cape May County Construction Board of 

Appeals. 

 

 



OFFERED BY: _______________________SECONDED BY: ___________________________ 
****************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted 
by the Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 17th day of October, 
2023. 
 
Dated: October 17, 2023  

Signed: ___________________________ 
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

                        
APPROVED: ____________________________ 

        Patrick Rosenello, Mayor 
 

          Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent                                Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent  
Tolomeo     Koehler 
Rullo                                                                              Bishop 
Kane                                                                            Zampirri 
Del Conte 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 1    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Batch Id: RB1       Batch Type: C   Batch Date: 10/17/23  Checking Account: CREST            G/L Credit: Budget G/L Credit
Generate Direct Deposit: N

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

            10/17/23   01479    AT&T MOBILITY                          PO BOX 6463                                                  
23-02271 10/03/23   1 CELL PHONES JULY 2023                 2,202.29   3-01-31-440-010             Budget        Aprv    10     1
                                                                       TELEPHONE COSTS                         
23-02271 10/03/23   2 CELL PHONES SEPT 2023                 2,142.81   3-01-31-440-010             Budget        Aprv    11     1
                                                                       TELEPHONE COSTS                         
                                                            4,345.10 
 
            10/17/23   01485    ADMINISTRATIVE ADVANTAGE               PO BOX 13846                                                 
23-02306 10/10/23   1 Ambulance Services - Sept 2023        1,753.32   3-01-20-132-099             Budget        Aprv    28     1
                                                                       AMBULANCE BILLING COSTS                 
                                                            1,753.32 
 
            10/17/23   01964    AMERIFLEX                              PO BOX 871655                                                
23-02308 10/10/23   1 HRA & FSA - Oct 2023                    532.00   3-01-23-220-096             Budget        Aprv    38     1
                                                                       INSURANCE CONSULTANT COMMISSION         
                                                              532.00 
 
            10/17/23   02324    BARBER CONSULTING SERVICES             32 CENTRAL AVENUE                                            
23-02290 10/04/23   1 Cloud Backup                            600.00   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    17     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                              600.00 
 
            10/17/23   03042    CARLSEN GROUP INC, THE                 SHORESCAN SOLUTIONS                                          
23-02387 10/13/23   1 SHORESCAN MONTHLY                        95.00   3-01-20-120-033             Budget        Aprv   201     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - BOOKS AND PUB                 
                                                               95.00 
 
            10/17/23   03084    CALIBRE PRESS, INC.                    po box 3476                                                  
23-02394 10/13/23   1 Street Survival Seminar 2024            837.00   3-01-25-240-041             Budget        Aprv   208     1
                                                                       POLICE - CONFERENCES AND MTGS           
                                                              837.00 
 
            10/17/23   03361    COMCAST                                P.O. BOX 70219                                               
23-02336 10/12/23   1 8499050130137710                        176.21   3-01-28-370-036             Budget        Aprv    49     1
                                                                       REC CTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02336 10/12/23   2 8499050130005552                         20.02   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    50     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02336 10/12/23   3 8499050130074012                         10.51   3-01-20-130-036             Budget        Aprv    51     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02336 10/12/23   4 8499050130148337                        195.00   T-03-56-195-011             Budget        Aprv    52     1
                                                                       HEREFORD LIGHTHOUSE TRUST               
23-02336 10/12/23   5 8499050120278607                        365.04   3-01-26-290-036             Budget        Aprv    53     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02336 10/12/23   6 8499050130116193                        176.21   3-01-26-290-036             Budget        Aprv    54     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                              942.99 
 
            10/17/23   03383    ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC                 P.O.BOX 13610                                                
23-02335 10/12/23   1 OCT 2023 ELECTRIC STREETS            19,125.03   3-01-31-435-010             Budget        Aprv    46     1



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 2    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       STREET LIGHTING COSTS                   
23-02335 10/12/23   2 OCT 2023 ELECTRIC TRAFFIC             1,510.59   3-01-31-435-010             Budget        Aprv    47     1
                                                                       STREET LIGHTING COSTS                   
23-02335 10/12/23   3 OCT 2023 ELECTRIC GENERAL            12,756.89   3-01-31-435-010             Budget        Aprv    48     1
                                                                       STREET LIGHTING COSTS                   
                                                           33,392.51 
 
            10/17/23   04385    DOCUTREND INC                          575 8th Avenue                                               
23-02296 10/04/23   1 Contract Charge 1/19-7/18/23          5,043.00   3-01-20-130-036             Budget        Aprv    21     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                            5,043.00 
 
            10/17/23   04429    Draeger, Inc.                          PO Box 13369                                                 
23-01341 06/22/23   1 Repairs, Hose Pump, JAR                 288.00   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv     3     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                              288.00 
 
            10/17/23   04621    Deere & Company                        AG & TURF CBD & GOVERMENT SALE                               
23-01130 05/31/23   1 Gator XUV835E                        16,591.34   3-01-26-290-059             Budget        Aprv     2     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - VEHICLES                      
                                                           16,591.34 
 
            10/17/23   05255    ONSOLVE, LLC                           PO Box 945672                                                
23-02285 10/04/23   1 Code Red Upgrade                      1,707.72   3-01-25-252-058             Budget        Aprv    14     1
                                                                       EM MGT -OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
                                                            1,707.72 
 
            10/17/23   06159    FEDERAL RENT-A-FENCE, INC              P.O. BOX 266                                                 
23-02383 10/13/23   1 Fencing for Irish festival            2,280.00   3-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   196     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
                                                            2,280.00 
 
            10/17/23   07046    GENERAL CODE ,LLC                      P.O. Box 772512                                              
23-02389 10/13/23   1 SUPPLEMENT 80                         1,120.00   3-01-20-120-105             Budget        Aprv   203     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - CODIF. OF ORDS                
23-02389 10/13/23   2 CLERKS STUDY GUIDE                      170.00   3-01-20-120-105             Budget        Aprv   204     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - CODIF. OF ORDS                
                                                            1,290.00 
 
            10/17/23   07296    GOLD TYPE BUSINESS MACHINES            P.O. BOX 305                                                 
23-02269 10/02/23   1 ICop Renewal                          1,776.00   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv     8     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                            1,776.00 
 
            10/17/23   07317    GREAT AMERICAN FINANCIAL SERV          PO BOX 660831                                                
23-02392 10/13/23   1 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE                   252.00   3-01-20-120-022             Budget        Aprv   206     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - POSTAGE                       
                                                              252.00 
 
            10/17/23   08013    CAPE MAY COUNTY HERALD                 1508 ROUTE 47 SOUTH                                          
23-02385 10/13/23   1 Legal advertisement                     142.06   3-01-21-185-021             Budget        Aprv   198     1
                                                                       PLANNING & ZONING - LEGAL ADVERTISING   



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 3    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02385 10/13/23   2 Legal advertisement                      89.82   3-01-21-185-021             Budget        Aprv   199     1
                                                                       PLANNING & ZONING - LEGAL ADVERTISING   
23-02395 10/13/23   1 HERALD LEGAL ADS                      1,191.50   3-01-20-120-021             Budget        Aprv   209     1
                                                                       MUN CLK- LEGAL ADVERTISING              
                                                            1,423.38 
 
            10/17/23   10077    JOYCEMEDIA                             41 PARK DRIVE                                                
23-02297 10/04/23   1 Web Hosting Package, Updates            291.95   3-01-20-130-028             Budget        Aprv    22     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OTHER PROF/ CONSULT           
23-02390 10/13/23   1 LIGHTHOUSE WEBSITE                       29.95   T-03-56-195-011             Budget        Aprv   205     1
                                                                       HEREFORD LIGHTHOUSE TRUST               
                                                              321.90 
 
            10/17/23   12022    LEADER PRINTERS                        5914 NEW JERSEY AVENUE                                       
23-02393 10/13/23   1 TRASH/RECYCLING DECALS                2,319.40   3-01-20-120-021             Budget        Aprv   207     1
                                                                       MUN CLK- LEGAL ADVERTISING              
                                                            2,319.40 
 
            10/17/23   12035    LAWSOFT inc                            15 HAMBURG TUNRPIKE                                          
23-02267 10/02/23   1 Support 10/1/23-10/1/24               9,800.00   3-01-25-240-053             Budget        Aprv     7     1
                                                                       POLICE-RENTAL/REPAIR/EQUIP              
                                                            9,800.00 
 
            10/17/23   12675    LOMAX CONSULTING GROUP, LLC            P.O. Box 9                                                   
23-02309 10/10/23   1 Environmental Consulting              4,469.93   C-04-55-883-020             Budget        Aprv    39     1
                                                                       Ordinance 1883 - Buildings,grounds,beach
23-02309 10/10/23   2 Environmental Consulting             13,031.85   C-04-55-902-010             Budget        Aprv    40     1
                                                                       ORD. 1902 - BUILDINGS, BEACHES, GROUNDS 
23-02309 10/10/23   3 Environmental Consulting              3,077.10   C-04-55-830-020             Budget        Aprv    41     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1830-STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS  
                                                           20,578.88 
 
            10/17/23   14289    NJ DEPT OF COMM. AFFAIRS               DIV. OF CODES & STANDARDS                                    
23-02289 10/04/23   1 3rd Quarter Fees                      4,422.00   T-03-56-150-011             Budget        Aprv    16     1
                                                                       UCC-THIRD PARTY                         
                                                            4,422.00 
 
            10/17/23   14309    NEW HORIZON COMMUNICATIONS             P.O. BOX 981073                                              
23-02299 10/04/23   1 Phone Usage - October 2023            4,070.52   3-01-31-440-010             Budget        Aprv    23     1
                                                                       TELEPHONE COSTS                         
                                                            4,070.52 
 
            10/17/23   14875    NJ Fish and Wildlife                   Wildlife Permits Unit                                        
23-02255 09/29/23   1 Permit Fee                               22.00   3-01-25-252-058             Budget        Aprv     5     1
                                                                       EM MGT -OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
                                                               22.00 
 
            10/17/23   14896    NEW JERSEY CONFERENCE OF MAYOR         116 West State Street                                        
23-02304 10/10/23   1 2024 Membership Dues                    295.00   3-01-20-110-044             Budget        Aprv    26     1
                                                                       MAYOR & COUNCIL- DUES/MEMB              
                                                              295.00 
 



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 4    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

            10/17/23   14971    NEW JERSEY COASTAL COALITION           217 N. Newark Ave.                                           
23-02384 10/13/23   1 2023 MJPPI Membership Fee               750.00   3-01-20-110-044             Budget        Aprv   197     1
                                                                       MAYOR & COUNCIL- DUES/MEMB              
                                                              750.00 
 
            10/17/23   15371    PARKMOBILE LLC                         ATTN: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE                                    
23-02397 10/13/23   1 End User Fees - Sept 2023             8,791.65   3-01-55-100-033             Budget        Aprv   210     1
                                                                       PARK MOBILE TRANSACTION FEES            
                                                            8,791.65 
 
            10/17/23   16002    PRESS OF ATLANTIC CITY                 P.O. Box 4690                                                
23-02322 10/11/23   1 Legal advertisement                     112.40   3-01-21-185-021             Budget        Aprv    44     1
                                                                       PLANNING & ZONING - LEGAL ADVERTISING   
23-02388 10/13/23   1 AC PRESS LEGAL ADS                      188.00   3-01-20-120-021             Budget        Aprv   202     1
                                                                       MUN CLK- LEGAL ADVERTISING              
                                                              300.40 
 
            10/17/23   18006    R&R RADAR, INC.                        762 WHITE HORSE PIKE                                         
23-00933 05/08/23   1                                         447.95   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv     1     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
23-01988 08/28/23   1 Repair Radar Unit, Display Bd           168.50   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv     4     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                              616.45 
 
            10/17/23   19023    SHORE ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES          P.O. BOX 597                                                 
23-02310 10/10/23   1 September Callouts - 5                  375.00   3-01-27-340-099             Budget        Aprv    42     1
                                                                       ANIMAL CONTROL COSTS                    
                                                              375.00 
 
            10/17/23   19216    SOUTH JERSEY GAS CO                    P.O. BOX 6091                                                
23-02307 10/10/23   1 4630140000                               51.48   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    29     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   2 1920140000                               81.35   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    30     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   3 4139040000                              145.59   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    31     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   4 3899040000                               37.80   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    32     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   5 9379040000                              122.38   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    33     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   6 4338040000                               61.00   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    34     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   7 1340140000                              242.43   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    35     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   8 3478040000                               66.00   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    36     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
23-02307 10/10/23   9 2951140000                              199.87   3-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    37     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
                                                            1,007.90 
 
            10/17/23   19245    RICKY SLADE CONSTRUCTION, INC.         54 SLADE LANE                                                
23-02301 10/04/23   1 15" SDR 35 Pipe 112'                  5,751.20   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    24     1



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 5    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
                                                            5,751.20 
 
            10/17/23   19526    SPICA STEEL, INC                       P.O BOX 962                                                  
23-02265 10/02/23   1 Repair NWBP Garage Door                 288.75   3-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     6     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
23-02295 10/04/23   1 Door repair 5th St Fire Dept            514.50   3-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv    20     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
                                                              803.25 
 
            10/17/23   19664    Stefankiewicz & Belasco LLC            111 e 17th st suite 100                                      
23-02321 10/11/23   1 PB Solictor dues                      1,362.00   3-01-21-185-028             Budget        Aprv    43     1
                                                                       PLANNING & ZONING- LEGAL/PROF SERVICES  
                                                            1,362.00 
 
            10/17/23   20273    TRINITY CODE INSPECTIONS LLC           735 SHUNPIKE ROAD                                            
23-02284 10/04/23   1 September Electric Fees               3,741.00   T-03-56-150-011             Budget        Aprv    12     1
                                                                       UCC-THIRD PARTY                         
23-02284 10/04/23   2 September Plumbing Fees               2,187.00   T-03-56-150-011             Budget        Aprv    13     1
                                                                       UCC-THIRD PARTY                         
                                                            5,928.00 
 
            10/17/23   20874    Twin Rocks Water                       1985 Swarthmore Ave                                          
23-02288 10/04/23   1 Water Bottles, 5 Gallon Waters          199.90   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    15     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                              199.90 
 
            10/17/23   20976    TABB INC                               PO Box 1241                                                  
23-02270 10/02/23   1 Employee Bckgrd verif                   114.00   3-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv     9     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                              114.00 
 
            10/17/23   21030    U.S. POSTAL SERVICE (CMRS-FP)          P.O. BOX 7247-0119                                           
23-02305 10/10/23   1 POSTAGE MACHINE REFILL                9,000.00   3-01-20-120-022             Budget        Aprv    27     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - POSTAGE                       
                                                            9,000.00 
 
            10/17/23   23001    THOMSON REUTERS                        P.O. BOX 64833  (D6-12)                                      
23-02386 10/13/23   1 WEST ONLINE                             235.21   3-01-20-120-033             Budget        Aprv   200     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - BOOKS AND PUB                 
                                                              235.21 
 
            10/17/23   23281    CHRISTOPHER J.WINTER SR.               7 MONARCH STREET                                             
23-02291 10/04/23   1                                       1,000.00   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    18     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
23-02292 10/04/23   1                                         416.00   3-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    19     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                            1,416.00 
 
            10/17/23   30139    Jennifer Sibiga                        601 W. Poplar Ave                                            
23-02303 10/10/23   1 FALL ROLLER HOCKEY REFUND                60.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    25     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 6    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                               60.00 
 
            10/17/23   30140    Charlotte Osso                         4101 Hudson Ave                                              
23-02323 10/11/23   1 REFUND - FALL HOCKEY LEAGUE              60.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    45     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                               60.00 
 
            10/17/23   02188    BANK OF AMERICA                        P.O. BOX 15731                                               
23-02338 09/22/23   1 S4645347.002 - PVC Plugs                 14.16   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv    55     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02339 08/31/23   1 AMAZON.COM TL5662F20 AMZN - Pu           22.77   3-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv    56     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02339 08/31/23   2 AMZN Mktp US TL2DY5LB2 - Purch           14.20   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    57     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 08/31/23   3 114-6164176-5468257 ANTIBATERI           34.12   3-01-28-370-035             Budget        Aprv    58     1
                                                                       REC CTR - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES           
23-02339 09/05/23   4 AMZN Mktp US TL2BQ19H2 - Purch           18.65   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    59     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/05/23   5 AMZN Mktp US - Credit                   195.99-  3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    60     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/07/23   6 Label Dividers                           12.55   3-01-20-130-036             Budget        Aprv    61     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02339 09/07/23   7 Batteries                                32.60   3-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv    62     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02339 09/07/23   8 Amazon.com TR7859LU2 - Purchas          775.58   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    63     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/10/23   9 AMZN Mktp US TR1MD1X32 - Purch           62.93   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    64     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/11/23  10 AMZN Mktp US TR3EV5L41 - Purch           56.00   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    65     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/13/23  11 AMZN Mktp US TR0YM9W70 - Purch           65.84   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    66     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/13/23  12 114-0978437-5094656 - Stop for        2,520.89   3-01-26-290-056             Budget        Aprv    67     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-FIRE & OTHER SAFETY EQ          
23-02339 09/18/23  13 AMZN Mktp US TX8MS6CL1 - Purch          207.57   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    68     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/16/23  14 Hand Sanitizer                           27.84   3-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv    69     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02339 09/17/23  15 AMZN MKTP US TX7JE4V62 - Purch           12.38   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    70     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/15/23  16 114-5256286-4765845 - Wrench E           32.98   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv    71     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02339 09/18/23  17 111-2041721-1973805 GAMES FOR            99.77   3-01-28-370-065             Budget        Aprv    72     1
                                                                       REC CTR - REC PROGRAM EQUIP & supplies  
23-02339 09/19/23  18 114-3611379-0277804 - Tubing P           18.98   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv    73     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02339 09/19/23  19 AMZN Mktp US TX7721JW1 - Purch           48.37   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    74     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/19/23  20 AMZN Mktp US TX6LS7301 - Purch           19.94   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    75     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/19/23  21 AMZN Mktp US TX6EU5IT2 - Purch           47.60   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    76     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 7    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02339 09/23/23  22 113-0602721-0141002 CASES-CAR           139.95   3-01-25-265-056             Budget        Aprv    77     1
                                                                       FIRE - FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT          
23-02339 09/26/23  23 112-9093206-2739423 - Lubricat           89.99   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv    78     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02339 09/27/23  24 AMZN Mktp US T16L19371 - Purch           32.54   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv    79     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02339 09/28/23  25 11260681879664259 - Tires                99.96   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv    80     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02339 09/28/23  26 113-0602721-0141002 CASES-CAR           119.97-  3-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv    81     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
23-02339 09/28/23  27 113-5741343-6065818 LYSOL WIPE           37.30   3-01-28-370-035             Budget        Aprv    82     1
                                                                       REC CTR - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES           
23-02339 09/12/23  28 111-7186167-0775418 HEADPHONE            20.98   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    83     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02340 09/24/23   1 AAA078236 3 IPADS                     1,707.00   3-01-25-265-056             Budget        Aprv    84     1
                                                                       FIRE - FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT          
23-02340 09/24/23   2 AAA0728236 APPLE CARE FOR 3 IP          177.00   3-01-25-265-056             Budget        Aprv    85     1
                                                                       FIRE - FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT          
23-02341 09/06/23   1 BILLOWS ELECTRIC SUPPLY Old NJ           83.08   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    86     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/07/23   2 BILLOWS ELECTRIC SUPPLY Rec Ce           82.70   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    87     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/08/23   3 BILLOWS ELEC SUPPLY Rec Center          204.84   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    88     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/13/23   4 BILLOWS ELEC SUPPLY  inlet par          128.89   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    89     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/13/23   5 BILLOWS ELECTRIC SUPPLY  Inlet           46.21   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    90     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/18/23   6 BILLOWS ELECTRIC SUPPLY  Suppl          114.72   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    91     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/18/23   7 BILLOWS ELECTRIC SUPPLY Suppli           61.08   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    92     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/26/23   8 BILLOWS ELECTRIC SUPPLY -Rec C           73.14   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    93     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02341 09/28/23   9 BILLOWS ELEC SUPPLY 72 - Suppl           82.70   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    94     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02342 09/19/23   1 CAPE 47 LUMBER & FENCE -Trim n           20.98   3-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv    95     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
23-02343 09/12/23   1 COLONIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY Circu          572.34   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    96     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02343 09/13/23   2 COLONIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY Circu          321.15   3-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv    97     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
23-02344 08/31/23   1 70979 - Supplies                        480.00   3-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv    98     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
23-02345 09/26/23   1 62193 SINGLE GAS CALIBTATION O          101.81   3-01-25-265-026             Budget        Aprv    99     1
                                                                       FIRE - EQUIPMENT MAINT                  
23-02346 09/05/23   1 ESO-117354 EMPLOYEE SCHEDULER           111.00   3-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   100     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
23-02346 09/27/23   2 119247 ESO OCTOBER FEE                  111.00   3-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   101     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
23-02347 09/01/23   1 152670 EMS CHARTS AND FIRE REP          403.57   3-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   102     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 8    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02348 09/28/23   1 GLOCK PROFESSIONAL INC - Purch          250.00   3-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv   103     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
23-02349 08/30/23   1 33561 -Supplies                          49.05   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   104     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02349 09/01/23   2 CABLE TIES FOR BILL HENFEY PAR          112.21   3-01-28-370-026             Budget        Aprv   105     1
                                                                       REC CNTR- MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
23-02349 09/05/23   3 75461 - Roofing Screws                   47.91   3-01-26-290-094             Budget        Aprv   106     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PAVING & REP OF STS             
23-02349 09/06/23   4 THE HOME DEPOT B&G shop suppli           16.25   3-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   107     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
23-02349 09/08/23   5 THE HOME DEPOT supplies for 51           12.65   3-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   108     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
23-02349 09/12/23   6 H0943215982 - Sakrete                   590.00   3-01-26-290-094             Budget        Aprv   109     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PAVING & REP OF STS             
23-02349 09/18/23   7 79382 - Hose Washers                      6.96   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   110     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02349 09/18/23   8 DRILL BITS                               26.94   3-01-28-370-058             Budget        Aprv   111     1
                                                                       REC CTR-OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
23-02349 09/22/23   9 18164 - Nozzle                           11.96   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   112     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02349 09/21/23  10 DUCT TAPE AND CAUTION TAPE               28.43   3-01-28-370-058             Budget        Aprv   113     1
                                                                       REC CTR-OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
23-02349 09/21/23  11 16325 - Hose                             12.97   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   114     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02349 09/25/23  12 22968 - Zip Ties                         14.91   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   115     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02349 09/27/23  13 30243 - Supplies                         57.96   3-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   116     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
23-02350 09/23/23   1 1894417 FIRST AID AND BLS CERT          257.00   3-01-28-380-042             Budget        Aprv   117     1
                                                                       LIFEGDS - EDUCATION & TRAINING          
23-02351 09/08/23   1 98785 JUNIOR LIFEGUARD DECALS           546.47   T-03-56-190-014             Budget        Aprv   118     1
                                                                       REC TRUST-JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS             
23-02352 09/08/23   1 75712 - Paint & Roller                  205.49   3-01-26-290-094             Budget        Aprv   119     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PAVING & REP OF STS             
23-02352 09/15/23   2 16532 - Striping                        209.96   3-01-26-290-094             Budget        Aprv   120     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PAVING & REP OF STS             
23-02353 09/08/23   1 RACE TROPHIES, MEDALS, ETC            2,855.00   3-01-28-380-098             Budget        Aprv   121     1
                                                                       LIFGDS - RACES, TROPHIES, ETC.          
23-02354 09/18/23   1 SQ  CLEIG - Purchase                    750.00   3-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv   122     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
23-02354 09/25/23   2 IN  MAGLOCLEN, INC. - Purchase          400.00   3-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv   123     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
23-02355 09/05/23   1 EVENT  108TH ANNUAL LEague of           360.00   3-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   124     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
23-02355 09/12/23   2 EVENT  108TH ANNUAL LE - Purch          300.00   3-01-25-267-041             Budget        Aprv   125     1
                                                                       FIRE SFTY/BUR-CONF & MEETINGS           
23-02355 09/25/23   3 EVENT  108TH ANNUAL LE - Purch          120.00   3-01-20-145-041             Budget        Aprv   126     1
                                                                       TAX COL - CONF AND MEETINGS             
23-02356 09/20/23   1 1105326 ITEMS FOR NATIONAL FIR          392.90   3-01-25-267-056             Budget        Aprv   127     1
                                                                       FIRE SFTY/BUR-FIRE&OTHER EQUIP          
23-02357 08/31/23   1 2021174 HYDRO-TEST SCBA CYLIND        4,329.00   3-01-25-265-026             Budget        Aprv   128     1
                                                                       FIRE - EQUIPMENT MAINT                  



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 9    
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02358 09/06/23   1 NCOMPUTING GLOBAL INC. - Purch          185.40   3-01-25-240-053             Budget        Aprv   129     1
                                                                       POLICE-RENTAL/REPAIR/EQUIP              
23-02359 09/15/23   1 Shade Tree Conference                   160.00   3-01-20-100-042             Budget        Aprv   130     1
                                                                       GEN ADM-EDUCATION AND TRAINING          
23-02359 09/15/23   2 Shade Tree Conference                   160.00   3-01-26-310-036             Budget        Aprv   131     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS- OFFICE SUPPL             
23-02360 09/13/23   1 232868  CLASS A UNIFORMS - COL          115.00   3-01-25-265-032             Budget        Aprv   132     1
                                                                       FIRE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS              
23-02361 09/20/23   1 ALLEGRA MARKETING PRINT A - Pu          735.00   3-01-22-195-036             Budget        Aprv   133     1
                                                                       INSP OF CONSTR-OFFICE SUPPLIES          
23-02362 09/12/23   1 00050665 CLEANING SUPPLIES              119.91   3-01-28-370-035             Budget        Aprv   134     1
                                                                       REC CTR - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES           
23-02362 09/20/23   2 00051962 - Janitorial Supplies          974.34   3-01-26-290-052             Budget        Aprv   135     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-JANITORIAL EQUIP                
23-02363 09/25/23   1 34932 WINTERIZE AND STORE BATT          394.56   3-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   136     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
23-02364 09/25/23   1 COMFORT NOW City Hall air hand          885.00   3-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv   137     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
23-02365 09/15/23   1 182760 ID CARD FF LUDMAN                 17.60   3-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   138     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
23-02366 09/26/23   1 458671,457985 MISC EMS SUPPLIE          822.26   3-01-25-265-094             Budget        Aprv   139     1
                                                                       FIRE - MEDICAL SUPPLIES                 
23-02367 09/12/23   1 RUTGERS UNIVERSITY - Purchase         1,037.00   3-01-20-145-042             Budget        Aprv   140     1
                                                                       COLL TX-EDUCATION AND TRAINING          
23-02367 09/21/23   2 RUTGERS UNIVERSITY - ZB Intro           745.00   3-01-20-120-021             Budget        Aprv   141     1
                                                                       MUN CLK- LEGAL ADVERTISING              
23-02368 09/01/23   1 1713629 SEPTEMBER CYLINDER REN           46.50   3-01-25-265-094             Budget        Aprv   142     1
                                                                       FIRE - MEDICAL SUPPLIES                 
23-02369 09/13/23   1 TOP SOIL FOR BILL HENFEY PARK            29.90   3-01-28-370-058             Budget        Aprv   143     1
                                                                       REC CTR-OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
23-02369 09/18/23   2 SMELTZER AND SONS FEED AN Wint        1,999.50   3-01-26-310-066             Budget        Aprv   144     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS LANDSCAPING               
23-02370 09/02/23   1 737830939 STATIONERY SUPPLIES            90.23   3-01-28-370-036             Budget        Aprv   145     1
                                                                       REC CTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02370 09/06/23   2 7614396835 MISC OFFICE SUPPLIE           67.74   3-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   146     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
23-02371 09/13/23   1 47809 NWBP CAPS                       1,912.51   3-01-28-380-043             Budget        Aprv   147     1
                                                                       LIFEGUARDS - UNIFORMS                   
23-02371 09/13/23   2 47884 STAFF UNIFORMS                  2,280.00   3-01-28-380-043             Budget        Aprv   148     1
                                                                       LIFEGUARDS - UNIFORMS                   
23-02371 09/13/23   3 48012 STAFF SHIRTS FOR AROUND           700.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   149     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02372 09/17/23   1 NW Soccer Camp - Equipment Con           43.17   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   150     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02373 09/19/23   1 201708486 - Decals                      225.56   3-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv   151     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
23-02374 09/19/23   1 IN  TEC ELEVATOR INC. elevator          196.27   3-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv   152     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
23-02375 09/14/23   1 THE UPS STORE 5410 - Purchase            46.76   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   153     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02376 09/06/23   1 349910 - Oxygen Sensor                  140.13   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   154     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 10   
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02376 09/08/23   2 350080 - Break & Disc Pads -            201.02   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   155     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/12/23   3 350340 - Serpentine Belt                 17.63   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   156     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/12/23   4 350312 - Proformer                       16.18   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   157     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/14/23   5 350475 - Oil Filter                      22.02   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   158     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/14/23   6 350483 - spark Plug                      56.88   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   159     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/16/23   7 350609 - Proformer                       24.21   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   160     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/16/23   8 350619 - Air Filter                      19.81   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   161     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/17/23   9 350673 - Motor Tune Up                   16.98   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   162     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/19/23  10 350791 - Oil Filter                      21.32   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   163     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/20/23  11 350921 - Core Deposits & Warra          657.55   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   164     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/20/23  12 350866 - Radiator                       237.32   3-01-26-290-028             Budget        Aprv   165     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINTOF CITY FLEET OVER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/21/23  13 350986 - Air Filter                      16.00   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   166     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/21/23  14 351011 - Radiator                       237.32   3-01-26-290-028             Budget        Aprv   167     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINTOF CITY FLEET OVER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/21/23  15 350939 - Air filter                      16.00   3-01-26-290-028             Budget        Aprv   168     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINTOF CITY FLEET OVER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/22/23  16 351056 - Electrical Connector            15.87   3-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   169     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
23-02376 09/25/23  17 351151 - Brake Parts Cleaner &          175.98   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   170     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/26/23  18 351280 - Warranty Core Deposit          291.32-  3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   171     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/26/23  19 351233 - ENR Battery                      7.99   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   172     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/26/23  20 351223 - Blue Def & Wiper Blad          112.12   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   173     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/26/23  21 351242 - Oil Mix & 4 Cycle               78.24   3-01-26-290-030             Budget        Aprv   174     1
                                                                       PUB WKS CHEMICALS AND GASES             
23-02376 09/27/23  22 351293 - Warranty - Core Depos          618.48   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   175     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/28/23  23 351369 - U Bolt & Warranty Bat          347.10   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   176     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/28/23  24 351417 - Pry Bar Set                     31.37   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   177     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02376 09/28/23  25 351414 - Hammer Kit                     130.00   3-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   178     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
23-02377 09/19/23   1 WESTERN PEST SERVICE monthly p          368.50   3-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv   179     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
23-02378 09/12/23   1 2000111-55933865 WATER FOR REC           51.63   3-01-28-370-036             Budget        Aprv   180     1
                                                                       REC CTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES               



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 11   
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02378 09/26/23   2 WALMART.COM - Purchase                   21.28   3-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   181     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02378 09/09/23   3 FISHING POLE - PRIZE FOR FISHI           58.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   182     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02379 09/06/23   1 WB Mason Co - Purchase                  244.46   3-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv   183     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
23-02379 09/07/23   2 CM2076861 CREDIT FOR BOTTLE DE           66.00-  3-01-28-370-036             Budget        Aprv   184     1
                                                                       REC CTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02379 09/07/23   3 240501778 5 GALLON WATER JUGS           208.89   3-01-28-370-036             Budget        Aprv   185     1
                                                                       REC CTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02379 09/12/23   4 WB Mason Co - Purchase                   19.32   3-01-43-490-036             Budget        Aprv   186     1
                                                                       MUN CT - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02379 09/12/23   5 WB Mason Co - Credit                     19.32-  3-01-43-490-036             Budget        Aprv   187     1
                                                                       MUN CT - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02379 09/13/23   6 WB Mason Co - Purchase                   14.48   3-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv   188     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
23-02379 09/14/23   7 WB Mason Co - Purchase                  142.97   3-01-43-490-036             Budget        Aprv   189     1
                                                                       MUN CT - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
23-02379 09/13/23   8 WB Mason Co - Credit                     14.48-  3-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv   190     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
23-02379 09/15/23   9 WB Mason Co - B&G Office suppl          184.66   3-01-26-310-036             Budget        Aprv   191     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS- OFFICE SUPPL             
23-02379 09/20/23  10 WhiteBoard                               95.85   3-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   192     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02380 09/21/23   1 091523144002654 2 EMERGENCY RE        2,215.20   3-01-25-265-056             Budget        Aprv   193     1
                                                                       FIRE - FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT          
23-02381 09/18/23   1 Zoom Monthly Subscription                31.98   3-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   194     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
23-02382 09/25/23   1 gloves                                  201.94   3-01-26-290-056             Budget        Aprv   195     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-FIRE & OTHER SAFETY EQ          
                                                           41,772.48 
 

                        Count    Line Items                Amount
        Checks:            43           210            193,522.50 
 
There are NO errors or warnings in this listing.



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 12   
10:34 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Totals by Year-Fund
Fund Description                      Fund        Budget Total    Revenue Total        G/L Total            Total 

 
                                      3-01          155,128.85             0.00             0.00       155,128.85                   
 
                                      C-04           26,330.08             0.00             0.00        26,330.08                   
 
                                      T-03           12,063.57             0.00             0.00        12,063.57                   
 
                   Total Of All Funds:              193,522.50             0.00             0.00       193,522.50                   

                                                        G/L Posting Summary
 
Account                      Description                                    Debits           Credits
 
3-01-101-01-100-011          CASH-CURRENT FUND                                707.08        155,835.93 
3-01-192-08-000-000          ANTICIPATED REVENUES                           8,791.65              0.00 
3-01-201-20-000-000          CURRENT YEAR APPROPRIATIONS                  147,044.28            707.08 
                                     Totals for Fund 3-01   :             156,543.01        156,543.01                              
 
3-03-101-01-000-009          CASH - UCC -THIRD PARTY                            0.00         10,350.00 
3-03-101-01-000-024          CASH - RECREATION CTR TRUST FD                     0.00            942.15 
3-03-101-01-000-026          CASH - HEREFORD LIGHTHOUSE FD                      0.00            224.95 
3-03-101-01-000-027          CASH-RECREATION TRUST-JR LIFEGUARDS                0.00            546.47 
3-03-286-56-854-802          RES FOR UCC - THIRD PARTY                     10,350.00              0.00 
3-03-286-56-862-801          RESERVE FOR RECREATION CTR                       942.15              0.00 
3-03-286-56-863-801          RESERVE FOR HEREFORD LIGHTHSE                    224.95              0.00 
3-03-286-56-863-804          RESERVE FOR RECREATION-JR LIFEGUARDS             546.47              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 3-03   :              12,063.57         12,063.57                              
 
3-04-101-01-000-000          CASH-CAPITAL FUND                                  0.00         26,330.08 
3-04-215-55-900-000          IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS                    26,330.08              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 3-04   :              26,330.08         26,330.08                              
 
                                                 Grand Total:             194,936.66        194,936.66                              



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 1    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Batch Id: RB2       Batch Type: C   Batch Date: 10/17/23  Checking Account: CREST            G/L Credit: Budget G/L Credit
Generate Direct Deposit: Y

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

Dir Dep     10/17/23   01445    ACTION UNIFORM CO.                     3164 FIRE RD                                                 
23-02391 10/13/23   1 Uniform - Crossing Guard                859.00   3-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv    42     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
                                                              859.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   01968    ANTHONY STEFANELLI                     505 E 12 AVE                                                 
23-02334 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           200.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    41     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   02048    BOARDWALK SID MGMT CORP.               2426 BOARDWALK                                               
23-02311 10/10/23   1 Quarterly Assessment - 4th Qtr       15,625.00   3-01-55-100-009             Budget        Aprv    22     1
                                                                       SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT TAX                 
                                                           15,625.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   02293    MICHAEL J BROWN SR                     100 SEABREEZE CT                                             
23-02312 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           200.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    23     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   02667    BARBARA GEVAUDAN                       2105 TIDEWATER AVE                                           
23-02294 10/04/23   1 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     8     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02294 10/04/23   2 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     9     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02294 10/04/23   3 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    10     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02294 10/04/23   4 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    11     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              160.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   03370    CAROLYN COLLIER                                                                                     
23-02293 10/04/23   1 GO W/ THE GLOW YOGA INSTRUCTOR           40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     3     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02293 10/04/23   2 GO W/ THE GLOW YOGA INSTRUCTOR           40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     4     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02293 10/04/23   3 GO W/ THE GLOW YOGA INSTRUCTOR           40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     5     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02293 10/04/23   4 GO W/ THE GLOW YOGA INSTRUCTOR           40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     6     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
23-02293 10/04/23   5 GO W/ THE GLOW YOGA INSTRUCTOR           40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     7     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   03665    Cape May Car Wash LLC                  525 Stone Harbor Blvd                                        
23-02300 10/04/23   1 Car Washes                               11.00   3-01-20-100-026             Budget        Aprv    15     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
23-02300 10/04/23   2 Car Washes                               11.00   3-01-20-100-026             Budget        Aprv    16     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 2    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02300 10/04/23   3 Car Washes                               11.00   3-01-20-100-026             Budget        Aprv    17     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
23-02300 10/04/23   4 Car Washes                               66.00   3-01-20-100-026             Budget        Aprv    18     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
23-02300 10/04/23   5 Car Washes                               11.00   3-01-20-100-026             Budget        Aprv    19     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
23-02300 10/04/23   6 Car Washes                               22.00   3-01-20-100-026             Budget        Aprv    20     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
                                                              132.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   03721    CULLEN AND DYKMAN LLP                  229 Nassau Street                                            
23-02302 10/10/23   1 Dispute Shore Protection              9,657.74   3-01-20-155-027             Budget        Aprv    21     1
                                                                       LEGAL SERV-PROF SERVICES                
                                                            9,657.74 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   03731    CHARLES KLINK                          714 KERPER ST                                                
23-02328 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023            50.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    35     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               50.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   04387    DAVE GREENLAND                         122 E Wildwood Ave                                           
23-02318 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    29     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   04506    ROBERT DAVIS                           100 CENTRAL AVENUE                                           
23-02315 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    26     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   04532    ZACHARY DEVOE                          620 W PINE AVENUE , APT 14                                   
23-02325 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           150.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    32     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              150.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   04612    DIANE KENNY                            13 MARTHA LOUISE AV                                          
23-02327 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023            50.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    34     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               50.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   06961    FRANCIS G NOLAN                        510 MULBERRY AVE                                             
23-02331 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    38     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   06994    DOUGLAS B FORD                         509 W ANDREWS AVE                                            
23-02317 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           200.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    28     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   07654    GEORGE J KAROLYI                       5200 SHAWCREST                                               
23-02326 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    33     1



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 3    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   08766    Herbert Porter                         115 TEAL RD                                                  
23-02332 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023            50.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    39     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               50.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   10087    W SCOTT JETT                           908 Garnet St                                                
23-02320 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023            50.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    31     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               50.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   10794    James J Sawyer                         304 W. Walnut Ave                                            
23-02333 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           117.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    40     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              117.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   12486    LESLIE CLINE                           1801 New York Ave                                            
23-02314 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    25     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   13631    MATTHEW J MCCRORY JR                   305 E 8TH AVE                                                
23-02330 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           200.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    37     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   16214    PINELAND CONSTRUCTION, LLC             300 77TH STREET                                              
23-02298 10/04/23   1 Trash Collection - Sept 2023         67,399.17   3-01-32-465-099             Budget        Aprv    12     1
                                                                       GARBAGE COLLECTION COSTS                
23-02298 10/04/23   2 Trash Collection - Sept 2023          7,200.00   3-01-32-465-099             Budget        Aprv    13     1
                                                                       GARBAGE COLLECTION COSTS                
23-02298 10/04/23   3 Trash Collection - Sept 2023          5,425.00   3-01-32-465-099             Budget        Aprv    14     1
                                                                       GARBAGE COLLECTION COSTS                
                                                           80,024.17 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   18364    RICHARD DAVIS                          304 E 14TH AVR                                               
23-02316 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    27     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   18365    ROY BURNHAM                            228 E 8TH AVE                                                
23-02313 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    24     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   18477    RYAN LEWANDOWSKI                       121 E Lincoln Ave                                            
23-02319 10/10/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           100.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    30     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              100.00 
 



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 4    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

Dir Dep     10/17/23   18853    ROBERT A MATTEUCCI                     1410 NEW YORK AVE                                            
23-02329 10/11/23   1 Volunteer Stipend - Sept 2023           400.00   3-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    36     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   19443    SHORE QUALITY CLEANING                 91 CORSON TAVERN RD                                          
23-02266 10/02/23   1 September office cleaning DPW           460.00   3-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     1     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
                                                              460.00 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   19689    STARR GENERAL CONTRACTORS              3017 DELSEA DR                                               
23-02283 10/04/23   1 Portable Toilets - 9-30-2023          8,065.50   3-01-26-290-052             Budget        Aprv     2     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-JANITORIAL EQUIP                
                                                            8,065.50 
 
Dir Dep     10/17/23   22024    VAN NOTE-HARVEY ASSOCIATES             211 BAYBERRY DRIVE                                           
23-02398 10/13/23   1 Muni Eng through 9/24/2023            4,226.83   3-01-20-165-027             Budget        Aprv    43     1
                                                                       ENGINEERING SERVICES                    
23-02398 10/13/23   2 Provide Planning Consultation           233.00   Z-23-6-1                    Project       Aprv    44     1
                                                                       234 W 18TH AVENUE             
23-02398 10/13/23   3 Provide Planning Consultation           138.50   P-23-6-2                    Project       Aprv    45     1
                                                                       423 E 5TH AVENUE              
23-02398 10/13/23   4 Provide Planning Consultation           611.00   Z-23-7-1                    Project       Aprv    46     1
                                                                       130 E WALNUT AVENUE           
23-02398 10/13/23   5 Provide Planning Consultation           422.00   Z-23-8-1                    Project       Aprv    47     1
                                                                       214 E 23RD AVENUE             
23-02398 10/13/23   6 South Jersey Gas                      5,212.66   SO 412                      Project       Aprv    48     1
                                                                       SJ GAS CO INFRAST. IMPROVEMENT
23-02398 10/13/23   7 MNE 202-204 8th Ave                     494.97   SO 661                      Project       Aprv    49     1
                                                                       802 NEW YORK AVENUE           
23-02398 10/13/23   8 MNE 200 8th Ave                         489.73   SO 661                      Project       Aprv    50     1
                                                                       802 NEW YORK AVENUE           
23-02398 10/13/23   9 MNE 426 W. 19th Ave                     451.00   SO 662                      Project       Aprv    51     1
                                                                       426 W 19TH AVENUE             
23-02398 10/13/23  10 MNE 326 W. 16th Ave                   2,795.15   SO 663                      Project       Aprv    52     1
                                                                       326 W 16TH AVENUE             
23-02398 10/13/23  11 Hurricane Jose Storm                 13,900.50   C-04-55-902-010             Budget        Aprv    53     1
                                                                       ORD. 1902 - BUILDINGS, BEACHES, GROUNDS 
23-02398 10/13/23  12 Spruce Ave Gateway                   15,425.65   C-04-55-902-010             Budget        Aprv    54     1
                                                                       ORD. 1902 - BUILDINGS, BEACHES, GROUNDS 
23-02398 10/13/23  13 Emergency Beach Bulkhead              2,817.79   C-04-55-883-020             Budget        Aprv    55     1
                                                                       Ordinance 1883 - Buildings,grounds,beach
23-02398 10/13/23  14 Reconstruction 7th & Atlantic         1,051.00   C-04-55-830-020             Budget        Aprv    56     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1830-STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS  
23-02398 10/13/23  15 Atlantic Ave, Phase 1                 3,798.00   C-04-55-830-020             Budget        Aprv    57     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1830-STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS  
23-02398 10/13/23  16 Trench Restoration Contract             199.48   C-04-55-883-020             Budget        Aprv    58     1
                                                                       Ordinance 1883 - Buildings,grounds,beach
23-02398 10/13/23  17 Reconstruction East 5th Ave           5,574.30   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    59     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  18 Police Dept Renovations               4,449.00   C-04-55-883-020             Budget        Aprv    60     1
                                                                       Ordinance 1883 - Buildings,grounds,beach



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 5    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

23-02398 10/13/23  19 DPW Complex                           1,002.00   C-04-55-883-020             Budget        Aprv    61     1
                                                                       Ordinance 1883 - Buildings,grounds,beach
23-02398 10/13/23  20 Boardwalk Reconstruction             25,000.73   C-04-55-902-010             Budget        Aprv    62     1
                                                                       ORD. 1902 - BUILDINGS, BEACHES, GROUNDS 
23-02398 10/13/23  21 Ian Storm Damage                     16,420.65   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    63     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  22 Olde NJ & Spruce Ave Repair           1,890.00   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    64     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  23 Anglesea Fire Co Sewer Repair           630.00   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    65     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  24 1st & Olde NJ Aves Repair               252.00   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    66     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  25 506-507 E 19th Ave Repair               378.00   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    67     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  26 1200 Delaware Ave Repair                252.00   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    68     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
23-02398 10/13/23  27 Boardwalk Inspection & Assess         1,937.33   C-04-55-902-010             Budget        Aprv    69     1
                                                                       ORD. 1902 - BUILDINGS, BEACHES, GROUNDS 
23-02398 10/13/23  28 W 23rd Ave Drainage Repair           10,951.57   C-04-55-852-010             Budget        Aprv    70     1
                                                                       ORD 1852 - STREETS,ROADS, & BULKHEADS   
                                                          121,004.84 
 

                        Count    Line Items                Amount
Direct Deposit:            29            70            240,755.25 
 
There are NO errors or warnings in this listing.



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 6    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Totals by Year-Fund
Fund Description                      Fund        Budget Total    Revenue Total        G/L Total            Total 

 
                                      3-01          123,617.24             0.00             0.00       123,617.24                   
 
                                      C-04          105,930.00             0.00             0.00       105,930.00                   
 
                                      T-03              360.00             0.00             0.00           360.00                   
 
                   Total Of All Funds:              229,907.24             0.00             0.00       229,907.24                   



 
October 13, 2023                                       CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 7    
10:36 AM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

         Project Description                              Project No.         Project Total

 
         423 E 5TH AVENUE                                 P-23-6-2                   138.50                                         
 
         SJ GAS CO INFRAST. IMPROVEMENT                   SO 412                   5,212.66                                         
 
         802 NEW YORK AVENUE                              SO 661                     984.70                                         
 
         426 W 19TH AVENUE                                SO 662                     451.00                                         
 
         326 W 16TH AVENUE                                SO 663                   2,795.15                                         
 
         234 W 18TH AVENUE                                Z-23-6-1                   233.00                                         
 
         130 E WALNUT AVENUE                              Z-23-7-1                   611.00                                         
 
         214 E 23RD AVENUE                                Z-23-8-1                   422.00                                         
 
                                Total Of All Projects:                            10,848.01                       

                                                        G/L Posting Summary
 
Account                      Description                                    Debits           Credits
 
3-01-101-01-100-011          CASH-CURRENT FUND                                  0.00        123,617.24 
3-01-201-20-000-000          CURRENT YEAR APPROPRIATIONS                  107,992.24              0.00 
3-01-210-55-000-000          SPECIAL DISTRICT TAXES PAYABLE                15,625.00              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 3-01   :             123,617.24        123,617.24                              
 
3-03-101-01-000-012          CASH-DEVELOPER DEPOSITS                            0.00         10,848.01 
3-03-101-01-000-024          CASH - RECREATION CTR TRUST FD                     0.00            360.00 
3-03-286-56-856-801          RESERVE FOR DEVELOPERS DEPOSIT                10,848.01              0.00 
3-03-286-56-862-801          RESERVE FOR RECREATION CTR                       360.00              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 3-03   :              11,208.01         11,208.01                              
 
3-04-101-01-000-000          CASH-CAPITAL FUND                                  0.00        105,930.00 
3-04-215-55-900-000          IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS                   105,930.00              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 3-04   :             105,930.00        105,930.00                              
 
                                                 Grand Total:             240,755.25        240,755.25                              




